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PART I
ITEM 1. BUSINESS
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This report contains forwartboking statements within the meaning of Sectida @flthe Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and &e&YA ¢
the Securities Act of 1933. Any statements cordaimehis report that are not statements of histatifact may be forwardtboking statement
When we use the words “intends,” “estimates,” “piet$,” “potential,” “continues,” “anticipates,” “pl ans,” “expects,” “believes,” “should,
“could,” “may,” “will” or the negative of these tems or other comparable terminology, we are idemtgyforwardiooking statementi
Forward-looking statements involve risks and uncertaintiesich may cause our actual results, performancaatrievements to be materi
different from those expressed or implied by foddaoking statements. These factors include ouramde and development activiti
distributor channels, compliance with regulatorypiositions; and our capital needs. Although we baithat the expectations reflected in
forward-looking statements are reasonable, we cannot guesfuture results, levels of activity, performac achievements.

” ” w ” ” ” w ” o ” w ” o ”

Except as may be required by applicable law, waatoundertake or intend to update or revise ouniard-looking statements, and we ass!
no obligation to update any forwaldeking statements contained in this report assuteof new information or future events or devebepts
Thus, you should not assume that our silence dwer tmeans that actual events are bearing out asesgpd or implied in such forward-
looking statements. You should carefully review emsider the various disclosures we make in thgrt and our other reports filed with 1
Securities and Exchange Commission that attempttise interested parties of the risks, uncertamtnd other factors that may affect
business.

For further information about these and other riskxertainties and factors, please review thelaisce included in this report unddpdrt |
Item 1A, Risk Factors.”

General

The Company (Chembio Diagnostics, Inc. and its WhoWwned subsidiary Chembio Diagnostic Systems, Irecallectively referred to here
as the “Company”) develops, manufactures, marketsliaenses rapid point-afare diagnostic tests (POCTSs) that detect infestidigease
The Companys main products presently commercially availab&efaur rapid tests for the detection of HIV antitesd Three of these produ
employ in-licensed and proprietary lateral flowHheclogies (see “Our Rapid Test Technologiesgn be used with all blood matrices
samples, and are manufactured in a standard eaésettat, a dipstick format, and a proprietary bformat. The tests employing the cas:
and proprietary barrel formats were approved byRbBé in 2006 and are distributed by Alere, Incrnfierly Inverness Medical Innovatio
Inc. (“Alere”), in the United States. Our fountipid HIV test, which we more recently developedooin patented Dual Path Platform (DPP®
and does not require iicensing, detects antibodies to HIV in oral flgdmples as well as in all blood matrices. We grgte launching th
product under Chembio’s brand in 2012.

Our new product pipeline is based on this DRB&nology for which we were issued a United Stasgent in 2007 and for which additio
patent protection has issued or is pending worldwid/ith the DPP® proprietary platform, we can jgguate in the point-otare marke
segment of the nearly $40 billion global in-vitr@agnostic market that is estimated to be8bHlion with an overall growth rate of 7% |
annum. POCTSs, by providing prompt and early diaig)ccan reduce patient stays, lower overall castgrove therapeutic interventions
improve patient outcomes as a result of prompt eady diagnosis. They can also prevent needlespitab admissions, simplify testi
procedures, avoid delays from central lab batchangl, eliminate the need for return visits.

In the areas of infectious and sexually transmittsgases (such as Influenza and HIV for examghe)utility of a rapid point—otare test h
been well established, and large markets have bstblished for these kinds of tests globally. hege focused our product developn
activity within these areas as they tend to haeehigher growth rates within the point-of-care segin

PRODUCTS

Lateral Flow Rapid HIV Tests

All three of our lateral flow rapid HIV tests arealitative “yes/no’tests for the detection of antibodies to HIV 1 &h visually interprete
results (one line “negative”; two lines “positivedyailable within approximately 15 minutes. Thedemre simple to use, have a shelf life @
months, and do not require refrigeration. The tegfer principally only in the method of test pemture, convenience and cost. One ol
FDA-approved lateral flow HIV tests incorporatepmprietary plastic “barreltievice that houses the lateral flow strip. Thisrélaforma
enables collection of samples directly (for examgilectly from a finger-stick whole blood sampl@}a the barreB capillary tip. A seale
unitized buffer vial, assembled onto the top of blaerel, is removed and seated into a stand; thleis¢hen pierced by the barekapillary tif
thereby initiating the upward flow of the resultisgmple-buffer solution through a filter, up inteetvertical devices chamber and onto 1
lateral flow strip. This results in a unique urgtizand closed device system that can reduce thecela exposure to potentially infectic
samples. Our other FDApproved lateral flow HIV test uses a more conwerati rectangular plastic cassette format that hotise lateral floy
strip. In this case a sample is transferred byafiseseparately provided transfer device (“loaptp a sample well or port of the cassette w
houses the lateral flow strip which is positionedirontally or flat.




Both of the abovelescribed products are marketed exclusively inthiged States by Alere as Clearview Complete HI¥ (the barrel forma
and Clearview HIV 1/2 STAT PAK® (the cassette fotjnand by Chembio in all other markets as Chentuwe Check®HIV 1/2 anc
Chembio HIV 1/2 STAT PAK®. Alere has non-exclusivghts to the barrel product outside the Unitede3ta

Our third lateral flow HIV test, HIV 1/2 STAT PAK IPSTICK is our most cost competitive and compacinfat. It does not have any pla
housing so that 30 test strips can be packagedistoall vial that is ideal for transporting inenrote settings. The test procedure is simil
the cassette format; an adhesive backing is prdvedea more cost-effective and compact “housingivbith to run the test.

Regulatory Status: The FDA approved our Pre-Market Applications @ieafter “PMA”; see “Governmental Regulatiorsiid Glossary) i
April 2006 for our SURE CHECK HIV 1/2 (and also néMere’ Clearview® Complete HIV 1/2) and for ourV[L/2 STAT-PAK (now Alere’
Clearview® HIV 1/2 STAT-PAK in the United StatesIgnproducts. A Clinical Laboratory Improvement tAthereinafter “CLIA”; set
Governmental Regulations) waiver was granted byFBa for the HIV 1/2 STAT-PAK in November 2006 afat the two Alere Clearvie®
brands in October 2007. Our HIV 1/2 STAT-PAK Dipkt though not FDAapproved, qualifies under FDA export regulationséd), subjec
to any required approval by the importing countoycustomers outside the United States.

All three of our lateral flow HIV tests have quéid for procurement under the President’s Emergé&tag for AIDS Relief (“PEPFAR”).The
STAT PAK (both the cassette and dipstick versiarg) also qualified for the second largest globagmm, known as the Global Fund (
Glossary), through qualification with the WHO buydfocurement scheme.

DPF® HIV Test

We have completed development of and are now cogiatieging our DPP@HIV 1&2 Assay. As in the case of our lateral flot¥V tests, th
DPP® HIV test is also a qualitative “yes/ni@st for the detection of antibodies to HIV 1 &dglivers visual results within approximately
minutes, is simple to use, has a shelf life of 2dnths, and does not require refrigeration. Howekier product, which is our first prodt
incorporating our patented DPR@&chnology, can be used with oral fluid samplesyeal as all blood matrices. This product also ipowate
our patenipending oral fluid collection and storage systeat #mables samples to be fully extracted in budtdution before application to t
test device, and also enables the extracted satmple stored and retested or tested for multipleditimns. Most importantly, clinical a
laboratory studies conducted over the last couplgears have shown this product to have improvedopmance compared with all of 1
current FDA-approved CLIA-waived rapid tests, eugsiuding our own.

Regulatory Status: In the first half of 2010 we commenced clinicaldies with this product in the United States parguo an investigatior
device exemption and in support of an anticipateeH\Parketing Approval application to the FDA. Duringe first quarter of 2011 v
submitted the first module of such PMA applicatiand we anticipate submitting the final module ddtes year. We believe that approva
our PMA application will be within approximatelyxsmonths after we submit the final module. Themupe would apply for CLIA waiver
this product.

The Company conducted laboratory and field studiils this product in 2002009 prior to our commencing the clinical trialstire Unite:
States. One of the international clinical studiess conducted by the United States Centers foraBeseControl, Global AIDS Program
Mozambique (“CDC GAP”)CDC GAP is responsible for evaluating products segko participate in PEPFAR, and CDC GAP had aly
performed its standard laboratory study in 2009 tkaulted in the approval for the use of the pobdo the U.S. governmenmst'internatione
AIDS relief program known as PEPFAR (see Glossarigh blood matrices; the Mozambique study faciéthtapproval of this product 1
procurements by PEPFAR for use with oral fluid sksp The other study was sponsored by Chembioveaslconducted at the Natio
Hospital in Abuja Nigeria. In both of these stiglthe DPP® product’ performance equaled or exceeded the sensitinityspecificity of eac
of the other rapid tests in the study, including @mly oral fluid HIV test that is currently FDApproved. During the first quarter of 2011
also received additional data from the CDC thathier supports the previously reported performarineorder to capitalize on the PEPFAR
WHO approvals, this product still has to be regeseand approved for export to a PEPFAR or Globad-beneficiary country, and to alsc
one of the tests selected by such country for pa@tion in such countrg’national testing protocol. This is a processaneundertaking
selected markets.

In June 2010 ANVISA (see Glossary) approved the ®FRV test in Brazil. We are also seeking to haves thioduct approved by Wk
pursuant to its bulk procurement scheme as suctoeglgs necessary to pursue certain internatidoabr-funded markets.

PARTNERS INVOLVED IN MARKETING OUR HIV PRODUCTS

On September 29, 2006 we executed marketing aads@&agreements with Alere. The marketing agretniene for each of the two FI
approved products) provide Alere with a Yi€ar exclusive right (i.e. until September 2016tarket our rapid HIV tests in the United St
under Alere’s brand. The agreements provide Chemlvionexclusive license to certain Alere lateral flowqrds that may be applicable to
lateral flow products, principally including ourtéaal flow HIV tests we have continued to marketsale the United States. Simultaneous
the execution of the agreements, we also settigation with StatSure Diagnostics, Inc.(SDS) thatl been ongoing relating to the proprie
barrel device which is incorporated into one of ttus FDA-approved rapid HIV tests (See Lateral FldW Tests above).

The agreements with Alere have allowed the Comparparticipate in the growth of the rapid HIV tesarket in the United States in an O
(Original Equipment Manufacturer) capacity. Thidl@ooration has been successful as it has allowedcompany to invest in its prod
development, regulatory and manufacturing actisjtend to avoid investing in a United States mangatrganization.

We have appointed distributors internationally dar lateral flow HIV tests. Our largest markets éor lateral flow HIV rapid tests outside
United States are certain countries in Africa arekido.






Our DPP®HIV test was approved by ANVISA in June 2010. Tapproval was granted to our Brazilian partner,@isgvaldo Cruz Foundatis
(“FIOCRUZ"), pursuant to one of six technology transfer, sugplgl license agreements we have entered with thikcpealth organizatic
since 2004 (See OEM DPP® products).

OTHER LATERAL FLOW RAPID TESTS

The Company entered the rapid test market segmiéimtateral flow technology and for many years oewvenues were almost entirely base
this technology, primarily pregnancy tests befoee developed the HIV lateral flow tests. Becauséheflimited license we entered into v
Alere to manufacture and market only certain appidns of lateral flow technology, we developed own patent-protected rapid point-cdire
technology platform, DPP®&hat does not require a lateral flow license, &lbar other products and products under developragnbased ¢
the DPP®.Revenues from products based on lateral flow telclgies other than our HIV tests were 3.9% of sale®010, substantially all
which are primarily attributable to our niche pretidine relating to veterinary tuberculosis and @dm We developed the veterir
tuberculosis tests as a result of and developmegram we did pursuant to a National Institute kegrant. This grant work enabled u:
have our facility approved for the manufacture ofducts regulated by the United States Departmértgoiculture. We are pursuing ni
opportunities in the veterinary diagnostics fietdorder to leverage this capability together with development capabilities and proprie
point-of-care platform, DPP®.

OTHER DPP® PRODUCTS

Our strategy with respect to our DPP® technology éeolved as the Company has evolved. Initiallyipfang the issuance of our DRP
patent in the United States in 2007, our strategyredy involved efforts in developing third parfunded OEM research and developn

contracts and grants. This strategy enabled wusrnserve our own capital resources, while at timeestime acquire important knolew ant

experience with the platform while also developthgd party references and implicit endorsementsheftechnology. As our capabilities

develop and manufacture DPR®oducts expanded, and as our financial positiaitrproved, so have our strategic options exparsthe

improved. While we will continue to employ theagtrgy of seeking OEM development and manufactlagrgements as a way to participa

markets that we cannot and/or choose not serve (@igrinary) , we believe that we can also dgvelor own branded line of products, anc

plan to do this in the public health area. Thianokwill be launched with our DPPHIV Screening Assay in the United States markexQt?2

to be followed by our Syphilis test (See RECENEMELOPMENTS AND CHEMBIOS PLAN OF OPERATIONS FOR THE NE)

TWELVE MONTHS).

Following is a discussion of the OEM DPRsoducts for which we have completed our develognaetivity pursuant to our OEM contra
with FIOCRUZ, Bio-Rad Laboratories, and the Bagédilemorial Institute. The status of those OEM &feembiobranded products that i
still under development are described in Partelint7.

OEM DPP® Products
Oswaldo Cruz Foundation OEM DPP® Agreements

During 2008 we signed four agreements and in 200aalditional agreement with the Oswaldo Cruz Fatiad (FIOCRUZ) in Brazil relatir
to products based on our DPP® technology. FIOCR&Jte leading public health organization in Breaild it is affiliated with Brazik
Ministry of Health and has basic research and e divisions as well as extensive manufactutfiagjlities that manufacture drugs
vaccines, as well as diagnostic products.

During 2010, two of the products under agreemettth WIOCRUZ, the DPP® HIV Screening Assay and thigaBd multiplex point-of:are
confirmation test for HIV 1&2, were approved by ANSA. We believe that FIOCRUZ is seeking to havesthproducts used in a new st
testing algorithm to be deployed by the Ministry iéalth in Brazil; an evaluation concerning thisvnalgorithm is underway. During t
fourth quarter of 2010, we shipped $537,500 of DRR® Screening Assays to FIOCRUZ. Under the twoeggnents we have for the rece
approved products, there is a potential for aggeegales of $13.5 million. The agreements betwherCompany and FIOCRUZ are uni
examples of technology transfer collaborations ketwa private sector rapid test manufacturer apdbdic health organization. The ot
products under agreement with FIOCRUZ are for DRE®Iucts for Leishmaniasis, Leptospirosis and Sighiihese products are still pend
regulatory approval in Brazil and their statusrigty discussed in Part Il Item 7.

All of the agreements with FIOCRUZ contemplate ehtelogy transfer license to FIOCRUZ for the mawtige of the subject products o
stipulated periods of time. These technology fienss and the provision by Chembio of the informatand training that is required for this
occur, are subject to Chembio receiving orderaforinimum amount of products for manufacture by @hie; thereafter Chembio may rece
royalty payments for a defined period based on yebdold by FIOCRUZ to the public health programsBirazil. During 2010 Chemt
received $92,000 of royalties from FIOCRUZ pursuarthe 2004 agreement with FIOCRUZ.

Bio-Rad Laboratories OEM DPP® Agreement- On April 6, 2008, we entered a milestone-baseceldpment agreement with BiRac
Laboratories N.A., a division of Bio-Rad Laboragxilnc (NYSE:BIO), a leading imitro diagnostic and life science company. Thesagrer
with Bio-Rad was for the development of a six-bandltiplex product (the specific application is ciol@ntial) on our DPP®Based o
achieving the proof of concept for this productidgr2008, in January 2009 we entered a limitedesieé license agreement with BRac
related to the field of use for this applicationdave continued the development work during alP@®9 and until BidRad confirmed that ti
product specifications were met in the second guasf 2010. In June 2010, BRad exercised its option to have Chembio trandie
manufacturing of this product to Bio-Rad, which gges was completed in October 2010. Chembio ledithat BioRad is proceeding with t
regulatory approvals of this product, with CE MéKely by the end of 2010, although there can bessurance of this. We further believe
Bio-Rad has begun discussions with the FDA to dischissproduct, its proposed performance claims ardinkended clinical protocol
support its regulatory submission.






During 2008 to 2010, Chembio earned approximately 460,000 for product development work rendered to Ri-Rad under this
agreement, plus an additional $490,000 in licens@@ other fees related to the manufacturing transfer

Battelle/CDC DPP® Influenza Immunity Test —In December 2009 Chembio entered into a milestmased development agreement fol
development and initial supply of a multiplex, mgioint-ofcare ("POC") influenza immunity test. The agreemmomtemplated a period
approximately nine months in which the developmestivity was to be completed. Chembio entered dligieement with Battelle Memor
Institute, which has a master contract with thetéthiStates Centers for Disease Control and Preve(tCDC") to enter into, implement &
provide technical oversight of agreements relatmgandemic preparedness on behalf of CDC. Tlectibe of the project was to develo
product that can determine an individual's immuiidtyseasonal and novel influenza viruses, includiogel swine H1N1, either in the field
in an outpatient setting. Development work withpesst to the contract development specificationuissgantially completed and our cont
partners are assessing the prototype product aedaing potential additional funded developmecthaty.

Our Rapid Test Technologies

All of our commercially available current produ@siploy either inlicensed lateral flow technology or our own patenfual Path Platfor
(DPP®) technology and are visually read. Certairoof new DPP®products will incorporate reader technologies e help record ai
report test results and reduce subjectivity of ltsssometimes found with visually read tests. Blatieral flow technology and DPP&llow the
development of accurate, low cost, easy-to-perfaingle-use diagnostic tests for rapid, visual ct&te of specific antigemntibody complexe
on a test strip. This format provides a test thaimple (requires neither electricity nor expgastquipment for test execution or reading,
skilled personnel for test interpretation), rapidrifaround time approximately 15 minutes), safen{mizes handling of potentially infect
specimens), non-invasive (require2®micro liters of whole blood easily obtained watlinger prick, or alternatively, serum or plasirsgbl
(24 months at room temperature storage in the @faser HIV tests), and highly reproducible.

We believe that products developed using DRE&@nology can provide superior diagnostic perfarogaas compared with products that
lateral flow technology. The reason for this isttbae of the major differences between the twof@iats is that in DPP@amples are allow:
to incubate with the target analyte in the testezbefore introduction of the labeling reagent/cgape whereas in lateral flow samples
combined with the labeling reagent to form a comjlefore coming in contact with the target analy#so, because of the usage in DP&®
separately connected sample strip, the controldatigery of sample material is substantially impedy This is critical in the developmeni
multiplex tests, as well as tests that involve eise sample material (such as oral fluid) that carinbpeded when forced to combine v
labeling reagents before migration on the tesp $trithe test zone area.

We can also use hand held and desktop readergdctiobly measure, quantify, record and report testilts. Certain of the products we F
and/or are developing incorporate some of thesgersaand we are developing other products that lmeaysed with or will require use ¢
reader.

Target Markets

Rapid HIV Tests
A large percentage of individuals that are HIV gigsiworldwide are unaware of their status. Pathefreason for this is that even those thi
get tested in public health settings will often neturn or call back for their test results if sd@egphave to be sent out to a laboratory whict
take at least several days to process. Howeverjntreased availability, greater efficacy and oedlicosts for antietroviral treatmen
(ARVs) for HIV has increased the demand for testimg the stigma associated with the disease isrleds and the ability to resume nor
activities is substantially improved, providing esfiive message to those potentially infected.

There are approximately 53,000 new diagnoses of idf&ction in the United States each year, accgrdinthe CDC. In time, most of the
infections progress to AIDS. The CDC estimates #mproximately 1.1 million individuals in the U.&e living with HIV, with an estimat:
250,000 Americans, or more than 25%, unaware ti@t are infected. It is these 250,000 infectedpfethat account for 54% of all n
infections per year. Part of the reason for thith&t even those that do get tested in public hesttings will often not return or call back
their test results from samples that have to bé¢ sento a laboratory and that can take at leagtrsé days to process. Healthcare offic
believe that by making more people aware of thé¥f status, it will reduce the number of HIV transsions.

Rapid HIV testing in the United States has now ted into a 6 million test market. This is from zero in 2003evhOrasure received FL
approval for the first rapid HIV test. We beliethat the US professional HIV rapid test market (notuding the OTC market) has the potel
to increase to 138 million tests over the next several years, wihichuld represent about 50% of all HIV tests dordatoin the United Stat
for clinical purposes. Assuming an average pricthe manufacturers of $10.00 per test, a totadmia! market of $180 million U.S. marke
inferred.

In 2006, the outlook for HIV testing was given @ lioost with the release by the CDC of new guidslifor HIV testing. These new CI
recommendations are that an HIV test should bengagea routine test like any other for all patidrgsveen 13 and 64 years of age, regar
of risk, with an opwut screening option and focused testing procedpral and post test counseling) guidelines. Adwoptf the 2006 CD
recommendations by a number of states continukaue an increasing impact.

In the international market, PEPFAR, the large ebhiStates funded international AIDS relief progréooused on fifteen countries, v
reauthorized in 2008 for up to $48 billion for FY#32012 (up from $15 billion in 2002008). PEPFAR, and the Global Fund are the lg
of the global initiatives that have helped to méile saving treatments available to those that need.tRemexample PEPFAR has the goal
by 2013 three million infected individuals will ipeovided treatment and 12 million new cases wilblerted. To achieve these goals more
more people are likely to get tested. As moreatife treatments become available at lower cogietls a clearer reason to be tested.






Oral fluid testing is an established alternativélimod testing for diagnostic tests, including HBéts. It is also often patient preferred,
providing a more comfortable test. In certain jpulblealth clinics, staffs choose not to handle Hlepecimens; thus, oral sample
collection provides a viable alternative. The mostl-established market for oral fluid HIV testimgythe United States. There is also
now an opportunity to participate in the over-tioenater market for HIV tests. This opportunity reeel important support by the

FDA and CDC in November 2009.

Rapid Syphilis Tes

Recent data indicate that approximately 70,000;000 new cases of syphilis are occurring anpualthe U.S. Syphilis can be treated v
antibiotics, but untreated can cause pelvic inflatory disease, infertility, ectopic pregnancy aad infect newborns. Treatment canna
provided without a confirmed diagnosis of an actjweviously untreated case of syphilis. Currestitg algorithms in the United States req
two different tests (called nameponemal and treponemal markers), each requiraiged personnel in laboratory settings and séwizgs tc
receive back results, in order to confirm an ac¢tpreviously untreated case.

Development of the POC market for syphilis testimgxpected to be comparable to the developmetiteoPOC market for HIV testing,
there is a significant public health value to beatge to provide results at the pointasfre. There are several ways to assess the 1
opportunity for this unique rapid test, although bedieve the U.S. rapid test market opportunityisinimum of 3 million tests, which
approximately 20% of the total number syphilis $egérformed in the United States today. Unlike H&gting, where a positive result f
requires a confirmatory test, and even then furthsts to measure viral load before expensivenreiat decisions are made, an individual w
confirmed active case of syphilis can be prescréngtibiotics immediately.

In February 2011 a study was released by the CRCdihggested that the “newestboratory screening tests, which are using teayiet
developed in the 1980s (i.e. Enzytimked Immunoassays), are resulting in a large remalb suspected false positive test results, whrehtes
results that are not in fact representing activeesaf Syphilis. This study involved tests dondigh throughput blood screening labora
settings, and not necessarily clinical setting$evertheless we believe that the study suggestsfthablic health clinicians could have wha
effectively the CDC-recommended laboratory testifgprithm in a point-ofare test, this could be an invaluable public etdobl in highe
risk testing (higher STD prevalence) settings. bWkeve this is the opportunity we have with thiequct.

Marketing Strategy

Our marketing strategy is to:

« Support, review and assess the marketing and lision efforts of our rapid HIV tests by Alere. eké, which is a leadit
marketer of point-otare diagnostic products, has significantly expdnitie distribution footprint since we signed ouregmer
with them, and although we believe that this wilhance opportunities for Alere to market our ragl¥ tests, the product line
a very small one for them notwithstanding the girgrowth they have enjoyed with respect to our pobsl

« Leverage our DF® intellectual property and regulated product develept and manufacturing experience to continue iog
new collaborations where Chembio can be the exaudevelopment and manufacturing partner suppottading marketin
organizations

« Establish strong distribution relationships for @hrembiobranded products in the U.S and abroad and edtabliirect sales a
marketing organization that is focused in the pubgalth market segmel

Competition

The diagnostics industry is a multifion dollar international industry and is intestyg competitive. Many of our competitors are sahstlly
larger and have greater financial, research, matudag and marketing resources.

Industry competition in general is based on thiowaihg:
« Scientific and technological capability;

« Proprietary knov-how;
« The ability to develop and market products and gsees;
« The ability to obtain FDA or other required regolgtapprovals

« The ability to manufacture products that meet aablie FDA requirements, (i.e. FD#\'Quality System Regulations) (
Governmental Regulation sectio

« The ability to manufacture products cost-effectvel
« Access to adequate capit
« The ability to attract and retain qualified persehm@nd

« The availability of patent protectio






We believe our scientific and technological captied and our proprietary know-how relating to dnslicensed lateral flow technology raj
tests and to our proprietary kndvow related to our patented dual path platformnetdgy, particularly for the development and mactifee
of tests for the detection of antibodies to infeat diseases such as HIV, are very strong.

Our ability to develop and market other productsnislarge measure dependent on our having addltimsources and/or collaborat
relationships. Some of our product developmendreffhave been funded on a project or milestonésbage believe that our proprieti
know-how in lateral flow technology and in our DuBhth Platform (DPP®}Yechnology has been instrumental in our obtainihe
collaborations we have and that we continue toymirdVe believe that the patent protection thahese with our Dual Path Platform (DPP®
enhances our ability to develop more profitabldatmrative relationships and to license out thérnetogy.

Research and Development

During 2010 and 2009, $4.1 million ($2.6 millionetnof Qualified Therapeutic Discovery Project (“QFD grants) and $2.9 millio
respectively, were spent on research and develop(matuding regulatory activities). These expensgeere in part underwritten by fund
from R&D and milestones revenues of $2.8 million2iBl0 and $1.3 million in 2009. All of our new gt development activities invol
employment of our Dual Path Platform (DPP®ghnology. These activities include completitgyelopment of certain products and ma
significant progress toward the development of @mlathl products. Research and development andategy activities are explained in de
in Part Il ltem 7.

Employees

At December 31, 2010, we employed 118 people, dict 115 fulltime employees. We have entered into employmentracts with oL
President, Lawrence Siebert, and our Senior ViesiBent of Research and Development, Javan EsfanBiae to the specific knowledge ¢
experience of these executives regarding the ingustchnology and market, the loss of the servafesither one of them would likely hav
material adverse effect on the Company. The conwiéh Mr. Siebert provides that Mr. Siebert wskérve as the Chief Executive Officer
President of the Company for an additional thyear term through May 11, 2012. The contract With Esfandiari has a term of three ye
ending March 2013. We have obtained a key marranse policy for Mr. Esfandiari.

Governmental Regulation

The manufacturing and marketing of the Compargxisting and proposed diagnostic products aralagd by the United States Food
Drug Administration (“FDA”), United States Departmeof Agriculture (“USDA”"), certain state and local agencies, and/or comps
regulatory bodies in other countries. These raguia govern almost all aspects of developmentidpertdon and marketing, including prod
testing, authorizations to market, labeling, praomtmanufacturing and record keeping. The CommmampA and USDA regulated produ
require some form of action by each agency befoey tan be marketed in the United States, and; afteroval or clearance, the Comp
must continue to comply with other FDA requiremeapplicable to marketed products, e.g. Quality &wst (for medical devices). Failure
comply with the FDA’s requirements can lead to gigant penalties, both before and after approvatlearance.

There are two review procedures by which medicaiads can receive FDA clearance or approval. Sproducts may qualify for clearar
under Section 510(k) of the Federal Food, Drug@asimetic Act, in which the manufacturer providggemarket notification that it intends
begin marketing the product, and shows that thdymrbis substantially equivalent to another legaillgrketed product (i.e., that it has the s
intended use and is as safe and effective as Hylegarketed device and does not raise differemtstjons of safety and effectiveness). In s
cases, the submission must include data from huwinaical studies. Marketing may commence whenRB& issues a clearance letter fing
such substantial equivalence. FDA clearance ob&RIP® Syphilis Screen & Confirm test will be by msaf a 510(k) submission.

If the medical device does not qualify for the F)Qfrocedure (either because it is not substapteduivalent to a legally marketed devic:
because it is required by statute and the FDA’slempnting regulations to have an approved apptioitithe FDA must approve a Pre-
Marketing Application (“PMA”) before marketing cdregin. PMAS must demonstrate, among other matters, that dukcal device provides
reasonable assurance of safety and effectivereSMA application is typically a complex submissjancluding the results of nodinical anc
clinical studies. Preparing a PMA application isyach more expensive, detailed and time-consumiogess as compared with a 510(K) pre-
market notification. The Company has approved PNbkghe two rapid HIV tests now marketed by Al&dedical as Clearview@&omplet:
HIV 1-2 and Clearview® HIV 1-2 STAT PAK®. FDA appral of our DPPEHIV screening assay for use with oral fluid or kdogamples wi

be pursued by means of a PMA application.

The Clinical Laboratory Improvement Act of 1988 (l@") prohibits laboratories from performing in vitro tedor the purpose of providi
information for the diagnosis, prevention or treatof any disease or impairment of, or the assessof, the health of human beings un
there is in effect for such laboratories a cewifiic issued by the United States Department of Hesaid Human Services (via the FL
applicable to the category of examination or procedoerformed. Although a certificate is not reqdifor the Company, it considers

applicability of the requirements of CLIA in thesign and development of its products. The stayutiefinition of “laboratory”is very broac
and many of our customers are considered labsLIA @aiver will remove certain quality control aralher requirements that must be me
certain customers to use the Company’s productstdads in fact critical to the marketability offmoduct into the point-o€are diagnostic
market. The Company has received a CLIA waiverdach of the two rapid HIV tests now marketed Hgrd Medical as Clearviesy
Complete HIV 1/2 and Clearview® HIV 1/2 STAT PAKE&he CLIA waiver was granted by the FDA for HIV 18T AT-PAK on Novembe
20, 2006 and for the Clearview® Complete HIV 1/2@ctober 22, 2007.
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In addition, the FDA regulates the export of mebad=vices that have not been approved for marketinge United States. The Federal Fi
Drug and Cosmetic Act contains general requiremétsiny medical device that may not be sold in théted States and is intended
export. Specifically, a medical device intended dgport is not deemed to be adulterated or migtwdrif the product: (1) complies with -
specifications of the foreign purchaser; (2) is motonflict with the laws of the country to whidhis intended for export; (3) is prominer
labeled on the outside of the shipping packageitti@intended for export; and (4) is not soldoffered for sale in the United States. Howe
the Federal Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act does pdhaiexport of devices to any country in the woifldhe device complies with the laws
the importing country and has valid marketing atittadion in one of several “listecountries under the theory that these listed camtrav:
sophisticated mechanisms for the review of medieaices for safety and effectiveness.

The Company is also subject to regulations in fpreiountries governing products, human clinicalsrand marketing, and may need to ot
approval or evaluations by international publicltfeagencies, such as the World Health Organizaiioorder to sell diagnostic products
certain countries. Approval processes vary fromntty to country, and the length of time required &pproval or to obtain other clearar
may in some cases be longer than that requiretdfited States governmental approvals. On the dthed, the fact that our HIV diagno:
tests are of value in the AIDS epidemic may leadame government process being expedited. Thateotgotentially adverse governmel
regulation affecting Chembio that might arise friuture legislative or administrative action canhetpredicted.

One or more of the Comparsytapid HIV tests are also approved or pending amdrfor marketing in several foreign jurisdictionscluding
but not limited to Brazil, Mexico, and a humberatiier nations in the developing world.

Environmental Laws

To date, we have not encountered any costs relatingmpliance with any environmental laws.
Intellectual Property

Intellectual Property Stratec

Our intellectual property strategy is to: (1) bludur owned intellectual property portfolio aroumat Dual Path Platform technology; (2) pur
licenses, trade secrets and know-how within tha afgapid point-ofeare testing, and (3) develop and acquire propyigiasitions to reager
and new hardware platforms for the developmentraadufacture of rapid diagnostic tests.

The Company has obtained patent coverage on the®O#Pgtuct line, including three U.S. patents, anceptt in China, Malaysia, Euras
Mexico, Singapore, and the U.K. Additional patapplications on the DPP@roduct line are pending in the U.S., as well amany foreigi
countries such as Australia, Brazil, Canada, theofi@an Union, India, Indonesia, Israel, Japan, &oamd South Africa. Patents have
been filed on extensions to the DPP® product limecept such as 4th generation assays.

The Company has also filed for patents and obtasoeae patents in the U.S. for other inventions saaschis multiple host species veterinary
test, and patent applications for the other ine#tiare in various stages from being recently fdad not yet examined, to already exam
and allowed but not yet issued. The Company detdgtand strategically foreign files its patentpéipations based on the importance of
invention to the Company.

Trademarks

The Company has filed and obtained trademarkg$groducts including DPP®, SURE CHECK® and STATKBA The DPPG@trademark i
also registered under the European convention (ECT)

Trade Secrets and Know-How

We believe that we have developed a substantiay bédrade secrets and know-how relating to theettgyment of lateral flow and DRP
based diagnostic tests, including but not limitedhte sourcing and optimization of materials foctstests, and how to maximize sensiti
speed-to-result, specificity, stability and reproithility. The Company possesses proprietary krimwm to develop tests for multiple conditic
using colored latex. Our buffer formulations emabktremely long shelf lives of our rapid HIV testsd we believe that this provides us \
an important competitive advantage.

Lateral Flow Technology and Reagent Licer

As part of our agreements in 2006 with Alere fa tharketing of our HIV tests, we were granted egolusive licenses to certain lateral f
technology for certain products manufactured andketad by Chembio including but not limited to ddiV tests. Although we believe ¢
DPP®is outside of the scope of all lateral flow pateofswhich we are aware, we consult with patent selinand seek licenses ani
redesigns of products that we believe to be inbinst interests of the Company and our stockhold@esause of the costs and other neg
consequences of timmnsuming patent litigation, we often attempt tdadba license on reasonable terms. Neverthetess is no assurar
that the Alere lateral flow patents we have licehséll not be challenged or that other patents aming claims relevant to the Compasay’
lateral flow or DPP®products will not be granted and that licensesuchspatents, will be available on reasonable terfrany. Alere ha
aggressively enforced its lateral flow intellectpabperty, although some of the main patents witlie within the next few years.




Regardless, the DPP® technology provides us withoan intellectual property, we believe it provides with a freedom to operate,
and that it also enables tests to be developed imifroved sensitivity as compared with comparatdstst on lateral flow
platforms. The Company has signed and anticipsitpsing new development projects based upon the@hnology that will
provide new manufacturing and marketing opportesitiWe have filed other patents that we belieile strengthen the DPP®
intellectual property and have also filed for patamtection for certain other point-of-care teclugies or applications thereof.

The peptides used in our rapid HIV tests are pateily Adaltis Inc. and are licensed to us undef-gear non-exclusive license
agreement dated August 30, 2002. In connectioh Witaltis’ bankruptcy, during the third quarter 2009 we bought out all of our
remaining obligations under that agreement. We diave licensed the antigens used in other tegiwidimg our Syphilis,
Tuberculosis, Leptospirosis and Leishmaniasis testgrior years we concluded license agreemegittad to intellectual property
rights owned by the United States associated with- H, and during the first quarter of 2008 we eatkinto a sub-license agreement
for HIV-2 with Bio-Rad Laboratories N.A., the exsiue licensee of the Pasteur Institute’s HIV-2 lietual property estate.

Corporate History

On May 5, 2004, we completed a merger with Chenibagnostic Systems Inc. through which Chembio Dasgics Systems Inc. became
wholly-owned subsidiary, and through which the managemedtbusiness of Chembio Diagnostic Systems Inarbemur management ¢
business. As part of this transaction, we charmedname to Chembio Diagnostics, Inc. In 2003,had sold our prior business, and i
result, we had no specific business immediatelygrga the merger.

Since the formation of Chembio Diagnostic Systents in 1985, it has been involved in developingnafacturing, selling and distributing in-
vitro diagnostic tests, including rapid tests begig in 1995, for a number of conditions in humand animals.

On March 12, 2004, we implemented a 1-for-17 revedit of our common stock. All references irsthiorm 10K to shares of our comm
stock have been adjusted to reflect this reverke sp

In February 2010, Crestview Capital Master, L.L{@restview Master), a Delaware limited liabilitprmpany that held 18,907,431 share
Chembio's common stock, spun off all these sharesstituting approximately 30.5% of Chembio's aangiing shares, to its three eq
holders. One of the three equity holders of CiestvMaster immediately spun off, to its approxinhaté26 equity holders, all of tl
12,990,569 shares of Chembio stock that it receiivelis distribution. As a result, as of Februgdy 2010, Crestview Master no longer ow
any shares. The former direct and indirect equitiglers of Crestview Master owned all these shavigb,none of these individual stockhold
having beneficial ownership of more than 5.61%hef dutstanding common stock of Chembio.
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Glossary

AIDS

ALGORITHM (parallel or

serial)

ANTIBODY

ANTIGEN

ANVISA
ARVs

CDC

CLIA waiver

DIAGNOSTIC

EITF
FASB
FIOCRUZ
FDA
FDIC
FAS

IgG

NGO
OoTC
PEPFAR
PMA

PROTOCOL
REAGENT
RETROVIRUS
SAB
SENSITIVITY
SPECIFICITY

USDA
WHO

Acquired Immunodeficiency Syndrome. AIDS is caubgdhe Human Immunodeficiency Virus, Hl
For rapid HIV testing this refers both to methogastocol (in developing countries to date) fomgsrapid
tests from different manufacturers in combinaties¢reen and confirm patients at the point-of-canel,
may also refer to the specific tests that have Isetetted by an agency or ministry of health taded in
this way. A parallel algorithm uses two screertiesgts from different manufacturers and a tie-bretdst
only if there is a discrepancy between the scregtdsts results. A serial algorithm only uses asdc
confirmatory test if there is a positive resultrfrehe screening test, meaning that the number of
confirmatory tests used is equal to the positivatie in the testing venue. A tie-breaker test resol
discrepancies between the screen and the confiryntsst.

A protein which is a natural part of the human inmasystem produced by specialized cells to nenéali
antigens, including viruses and bacteria that ieviéi@ body. Each antibody producing cell manufasta
unique antibody that is directed against, bindaro eliminates one, and only one, specific typanigen.
Any substance which, upon entering the body, stites| the immune system leading to the formatic
antibodies. Among the more common antigens areshagcpollens, toxins, and virust

Anti-Retroviral Treatments for AIDS

The National Health Surveillance Agency of Brazil

Anti-retroviral medications developed to fight All

United States Centers for Disease Control and Btire

Clinical Laboratory Improvement Act designationttaHhows simple tests to be performed in p-of-care
settings such as doc’s offices, wal-in clinics and emergency roon

Pertaining to the determination of the nature arseaof a disease or condition. Also refers toeatgjor
procedures used in diagnosis to measure prote@glinical sample

Emerging Issues Task For

Financial Accounting Standards Bo:

The Oswaldo Cruz Foundation of Bra

United States Food and Drug Administrat

Federal Deposit Insurance Corporat

Financial Accounting Standa

IgG or Immunoglobulin are proteins found in humdwooll. This protein is called an “antibody” and is a
important part of the body’s defense against dese@éthen the body is attacked by harmful bacteria or
viruses, antibodies help fight these invad

Non-Governmental Organizatic

Ovel-the-Counter

The Presidel's Emergency Plan for AIDS Reli

Pre-Marketing Approval —FDA approval classificatimn a medical device that is not substantially
equivalent to a legally marketed device or is otlige required by statute to have an approved
application. Rapid HIV tests must have an apprd®&th application before marketing of such a product
can begin

A procedure pursuant to which an immunodiagnosst is performed on a particular specimen in oral
obtain the desired reactic

A chemical added to a sample under investigaticorder to cause a chemical or biological reactidwctv
will enable measurement or identification of a &trgubstance

A type of virus which contains the enzyme Revensn3criptase and is capable of transforming intecte
cells to produce diseases in the host such as £

Staff Accounting Bulletir

Refers to the ability of an assay to detect andsam@asmall quantities of a substance of interdst. greater
the sensitivity, the smaller the quantity of théstance of interest the assay can detect. Alspséd the
likelihood of detecting the antigen when pres

The ability of an assay to distinguish between lsimhaterials. The greater the specificity, thedyean
assay is at identifying a substance in the presefisebstances of similar maket

U.S Department of Agricultur

World Health Organizatio
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

You should carefully consider each of the followiigk factors and all of the other information prded in this Annual Report. The ri:
described below are those we currently believe materially affect us. An investment in our Comr8tock involves a high degree of risk,
should be considered only by persons who can aff@doss of their entire investment.

Risks related to our industry, business and strat

Because we may not be able to obtain or maintain ¢hnecessary regulatory approvals for some of our pducts, we may not genera
revenues in the amounts we expect, or in the amouwntecessary to continue our business. Our existingroducts as well as ou
manufacturing facility must meet quality standards and are subject to inspection by a number of domeist regulatory and other
governmental and non-governmental agencies.

All of our proposed and existing products are scibje regulation in the U.S. by the U.S. Food amdddAdministration, the U.S. Departm
of Agriculture and/or other domestic and internaéib governmental, public health agencies, regwatbodies or norgovernment:
organizations. In particular, we are subject tdcstgovernmental controls on the development, rfecture, labeling, distribution a
marketing of our products. The process of obtainequired approvals or clearances varies accotirtge nature of, and uses for, a spe
product. These processes can involve lengthy ataileld laboratory testing, human or animal clihicgls, sampling activities, and otl
costly, timeeonsuming procedures. The submission of an agjglicto a regulatory authority does not guaranie the authority will grant
approval or clearance for product. Each autharifyy impose its own requirements and can delayfaseeto grant approval or clearance, ¢
though a product has been approved in another gount

The time taken to obtain approval or clearanceegadiepending on the nature of the application aag masult in the passage of a signific
period of time from the date of submission of tipplecation. Delays in the approval or clearancecpsses increase the risk that we will
succeed in introducing or selling the subject potsluand we may determine to devote our resouccdsferent products.

Changes in government regulations could increasecasts and could require us to undergo additiomals or procedures, or could mak
impractical or impossible for us to market our prots for certain uses, in certain markets, orlat al

Changes in government regulations may adverselctafiur financial condition and results of openagidoecause we may have to ir
additional expenses if we are required to changeplement new testing, manufacturing and controcpdures. If we are required to de
resources to develop such new procedures, we maiave sufficient resources to devote to reseanthdevelopment, marketing, or ot
activities that are critical to our business.

We can manufacture and sell our products only itewaply with regulations and quality standards ld&ghed by government agencies suc
the FDA and the USDA as well as by ngovernmental organizations such as the ISO and WW®.have implemented a quality system
is intended to comply with applicable regulatioddthough FDA approval is not required for the expof our products, there are exf
regulations promulgated by the FDA that specifica#late to the export of our products. Although believe that we meet the regula
standards required for the export of our produtisse regulations could change in a manner thdt auversely impact our ability to exp
our products.

Our products may not be able to compete with new dgnostic products or existing products developed byell-established competitors
which would negatively affect our business.

The diagnostic industry is focused on the testifiiological specimens in a laboratory or at thénpof-care and is highly competitive ¢
rapidly changing. Our principal competitors oftesve considerably greater financial, technical avatketing resources than we do. Se\
companies produce diagnostic tests that compegettjirwith our testing product line, including budt limited to, Orasure Technologies, Al
Medical and Trinity Biotech. As new products entlee market, our products may become obsolete ammgpetitors products may be mc
effective or more effectively marketed and solditibars. Although we have no specific knowledgam§ competitors product that will rend
our products obsolete, if we fail to maintain amth@&ce our competitive position or fail to introdugew products and product features,
customers may decide to use products developedibgompetitors, which could result in a loss ofaewes and cash flow.
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We have developed an oral fluid rapid HIV test &l &s other applications utilizing our Dual Patat®rm technology, which we believe will
enhance our competitive position in HIV rapid tegtand other fields. During 2010 we made sigaiit progress toward the
commercialization of this product. However we didive technical, manufacturing, regulatory and retamky challenges to meet before we will
know whether we can successfully commercialize petalincorporating this technology. There can d@assurance that we will overcome
these challenges.

We have granted Alere exclusive rights to marketQIURE CHECK® HIV 1/2 in the United States and rexciusive rights in the rest of 1
world and exclusive rights to market our HIV 1/2/8TPAK® in the U.S. only. Alere has no rapid HIV tests tha approved for marketing
the U.S., we are not aware of any rapid HIV progubat Alere is even contemplating for the U.Sd atere is obligated to inform us of €
such products as soon as it is able to do so.eAlees have rapid HIV tests manufactured by segefaidiaries outside the U.S. that are t
actively marketed outside the U.S., primarily irveleping countries. Our HIV 1/2 STAT PAK cassettedalipstick products compete aga
these Alere products, and we specifically acknogdetth our agreements with Alere the existence ohsither products. Moreover, except
a product in the HIV barrel field as defined in agreement with Alere, Alere is permitted under agreements to market certain type
permitted competing rapid HIV tests in the U.S.dgnthese conditions, we could choose to termitieeapplicable agreement with Alere
change the agreement to a rexclusive agreement, and Alere would expand therdaflow license granted to the Company to alliws
Company to market the product independently oruphoother marketing partners. While we believe tiare is committed to successft
marketing our products particularly in the U.S. arider developed countries where our products ateecome approved for marketing, Al
may choose to develop or acquire competing prodiectmarketing in the U.S. as well as other marletere they are marketing our SU
CHECK® HIV 1/2 product, and such an action could havesast a temporary material adverse effect on th&etiag of these products ur
such time as alternative marketing arrangementiddee implemented. While we also believe thatékpansion of our license to the Al
lateral flow patents substantially facilitates caboility to make alternative marketing arrangemeilsre can be no assurance that
modification of marketing arrangements and the iptssorresponding delays or suspension of saladduwoot have a material adverse ef
on our business.

We plan to introduce our DPP@&al fluid HIV test, which test also can be usethwilood samples, in the U.S. market under a Clieeimtanc
once it is FDA approved, currently anticipated 012 but for which there can be no assurance. etJadr 2006 Agreement with Alere, Al
has a right of first negotiation for the right toarket any new rapid HIV antibody detection testt th@ develop. In accordance with !
provision in our agreement, we presented this mbdo Alere in 2007 and in 2007 Alere waived itghti of first negotiation under t
agreement. While such waiver does not preventeAi®m reconsidering the marketing of this progdwe have no reason to believe that
will. Also, although we believe that the main metrkbpportunity for the DPP® IV product is for those customers that have argbeaferenc
for an oral fluid HIV test the product is also likeéo compete with our FDA approved rapid HIV tebng marketed by Alere. Therefore
could have a material and adverse effect on ounbss with Alere.

More generally, the point-of-care diagnostics indus undergoing rapid technological changes, virdlguent introductions of new technology-
driven products and services. As new technologez®me introduced into the point-cdre diagnostic testing market, we may be requiv
commit considerable additional efforts, time ansbreces to enhance our current product portfolidemelop new products. We may not t
the available time and resources to accomplishatiismany of our competitors have substantiallaignefinancial and other resources to in

in technological improvements. We may not be ableffectively implement new technologlyiven products and services or be success
marketing these products and services to our cieagmmvhich would materially harm our operating tessu

Although we own our DPP®atent, we own no issued patents covering latéoal fechnology, and the field of lateral flow techogy is
complex and characterized by a substantial amduittgation, so the risk of potential patent clealfjes is ongoing for us in spite of our [P
patent.

Although we have been granted nexclusive licenses to the lateral flow patents aidvbg Alere, there is no assurance that its latiost
patents will not be challenged or that licensesfaiher parties may not be required, if availatlalla In addition, certain of the Alere pate
will expire in the next couple of years which extion could open the market to certain competitbrghe event that it is determined thi
license is required and it is not possible to nieg@ta license agreement under a necessary patemay be able to modify our HIV rapid t
products and other products such that a licensddnmet be necessary. However, this alternativddcdelay or limit our ability to sell the
products in the U.S. and other markets, which wauldersely affect our results of operations, céshd and business.

On March 13, 2007, our Dual Path Platform ImmunagsDevice patent application was issued as UnitadteS pate
no. 7,189,522. Additional protection for this ifeetual property is pending worldwide. This ptath has shown improved sensitivity
compared with conventional platforms in a numbestoidies. We believe that this new platform issalé of the scope of currently iss
patents in the field of lateral flow technologyethby offering the possibility of a greater freedémnoperate. However there can be
assurance that our patents or our products incatiparthe patent claims will not be challengedaahe time in the future.

New developments in health treatments or new non-agnostic products may reduce or eliminate the demahfor our products.
The development and commercialization of producttside of the diagnostics industry could adversafgct sales of our products. |
example, the development of a safe and effectieeina to HIV or treatments for other diseases ad@@mns that our products are designe

detect, could reduce, or eventually eliminate temand for our HIV or other diagnostic products eeglilt in a loss of revenues.

We may not have sufficient resources to effectivelintroduce and market our products, which could maerially harm our operating
results.

Introducing and achieving market acceptance forrapid HIV tests and other new products will requsubstantial marketing efforts and !
require us or our contract partners, sales agentistributors to make significant expenditurediofe and money. In some instances we



be significantly or totally reliant on the markegiefforts and expenditures of our contract partreakes agents, distributors. If they do not |
or commit the expertise and resources to effegtinerket the products that we manufacture, ouraipey results will be materially harmed.
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The success of our business depends, in additionttee market success of our products, on our abilityo raise additional capital through
the sale of debt or equity or through borrowing, aml we may not be able to raise capital or borrow fuds in amounts necessary to
continue our business, or at all.

Our revenues and gross margins have increasedfisigmly in recent periods, and we have been mbfé for two consecuti
years. Nevertheless, prior to 2009 we sustainguifgiant operating losses since 2004. At Decen®3der2010, we had a stockholc’ equity
of $5.8 million and a working capital surplus of.&4nillion. The Company estimates that its resources are iuffito fund its needs throu
the end of 2011 and beyond or that, in the altereait could raise additional capital although thems under which that capital could be ra
would likely be very dilutive to current sharehalsle The Companys liquidity and cash requirements will depend owvesal factors. The:
factors include (1) the level of revenues; (2) éxéent to which, if any, that revenue level imprewperating cash flows; (3) the Company’
investments in research and development, facilitierketing, regulatory approvals, and other inwestts it may determine to make; and
the Companys investment in capital equipment and the extenwhiach it improves cash flow through operating @#ncies. There are
assurances that the Company will remain profitabrlegenerate positive cash flow in 2011 or, in thteraative, be successful in rais
sufficient capital to fund its needs through 2011.

The launch of our DPP®products in Brazil, increased revenues from Alereincreased sales to developing world markets, and etnued
strength in our contract development and grant revaues are all critical for us to continue to fund ou new product regulatory approval
and commercialization programs. If we fail to meetany of these objectives, we may not generate revesalin the amounts necessary
fund our planned research, development and regulaty expenses in 2011 .

We intend to attempt to increase internationalssafeour products. A number of factors can slovymvent international sales, or substant
increase the cost of international sales, including

« regulatory requirements and customs regulati

« cultural and political differences;

« foreign exchange rates, currency fluctuations aniff;

« dependence on and difficulties in managing intéomal distributors or representatives;

« the creditworthiness of foreign entities;

« difficulties in foreign accounts receivable coliect,

« competition;

e pricing; and

« economic conditions and the absence of availalvdifig sources

If we are unable to increase our revenues frontiatéonal sales, our operating results will be mally harmed.

Although we have an ethics and antcorruption policy in place, and have no knowledge roreason to know of any practices by ot
employees, agents or distributors that could be catrued as in violation of such policies, our busires includes sales of products
countries where there is or may be widespread coription.

Chembio has a policy in place prohibiting its enygles, distributors and agents from engaging inupbrtousiness practices, including activi
prohibited by the United States Foreign CorruptcBras Act (FCPA). Nevertheless, because we worbuthh independent sales agents
distributors (and do not have any employees oridigiges) outside the United States, we do not haordrol over the day-tday activities ¢
such independent agents and distributors. In aaidiin the donorfunded markets in Africa where we sell our produthere is significal
oversight from PEPFAR, the Global Fund, and adyisoommittees comprised of technical experts coringrrithe development a
establishment of national testing protocols. Tiia process that includes an overall assessmenpodduct which includes extensive prou
performance evaluations, a manufactigeaquality systems, as well as price and delivényBrazil where we have six product collaborat
with FIOCRUZ, those programs that our products @renay be deployed in are all funded by the BramilMinistry of Health. Althoug
FIOCRUZ is affiliated with the Brazilian Ministryfddealth, it is not its exclusive supplier. Howeuscause each of our collaborations '
FIOCRUZ incorporates a technology transfer aspeet,believe we have a competitive advantage versusr guppliers to the Brazili
Ministry of Health, assuming other aspects of owdpct offering through FIOCRUZ are otherwise cotitpe in comparison. We have
knowledge or reason to know of any activities by employees, distributors or sales agents of atigracwhich could be in violation of t
FCPA, although there can be no assurance of this.

We rely on trade secret laws and agreements with okey employees and other third parties to protecbur proprietary rights, and we
cannot be sure that these laws or agreements adedely protect our rights.

We believe that factors such as the technologitelceative skills of our personnel, strategictiefeships, new product developments, freq
product enhancements and name recognition are tedsem our success. All our management persorarel bound by noxlisclosur
agreements. If personnel leave our employmensome cases we would be required to protect oullénteal property rights pursuant
common law theories which may be less protectiaa firovisions of employment, non-competition orgistlosure agreements.

We seek to protect our proprietary products undaiet secret and copyright laws, enter into liceageements for various materials
methods employed in our products, and enter inmetegic relationships for distribution of the prothi These strategies afford only lim
protection. We currently have some foreign patesgsed, and we are seeking additional patent giotein several other foreign jurisdictic
for our DPP®technology. We have licenses to reagents (antigatts peptides) used in several of our products pmdiucts unde
development Despite our efforts to protect ouppeiary assets, and respect the intellectual ptppights of others, we participate in sev
markets where intellectual property rights protatsi are of little or no value. This can place products and our company at a compet
disadvantage
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Despite efforts we make to protect our confidentiérmation, such as entering confidentiality agments in connection with new busir
opportunities, unauthorized parties may attempmiojgy aspects of our products or to obtain infororathat we regard as proprietary. We
be required to expend substantial resources irrtagge@r protecting our intellectual property righor in defending suits related to intellec
property rights. Disputes regarding intellectuedperty rights could substantially delay productelepment or commercialization activit
because some of our available funds would be didestvay from our business activities. Disputesrdigg intellectual property rights mig
include state, federal or foreign court litigatias well as patent interference, patent reexamimapatent reissue, or trademark oppos
proceedings in the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office

To facilitate development and commercializatioragiroprietary technology base, we may need to wladdlitional licenses to patents or o
proprietary rights from other parties. Obtainimglanaintaining these licenses, which may not bdabla, may require the payment of trpnt
fees and royalties. In addition, if we are unablebtain these types of licenses, our product ldgwmeent and commercialization efforts may
delayed or precluded.

Our continued growth depends on retaining our curraét key employees and attracting additional qualifie personnel, and we may nc
be able to do so.

Our success will depend to a large extent uporskiils and experience of our executive officersnagement and sales, marketing, opera
and scientific staff. We may not be able to attraic retain qualified employees in the future doethie intense competition for qualif
personnel among medical products businesses, ge#ogreonsiderations, our ability to offer competiticompensation, relocation packa
benefits, and/or other reasons.

If we are not able to attract and retain the nemgsgersonnel to accomplish our business objectiwesmay experience constraints that
adversely affect our ability to effectively manufare, sell and market our products to meet the desa@f our strategic partners in a tirr
fashion, or to support internal research and deweémt programs. Although we believe we will be cassful in attracting and retain
qualified personnel, competition for experiencetrstists and other personnel from numerous compaamne academic and other rese
institutions may limit our ability to do so on aptable terms.

We have entered into employment contracts withRyesident, Lawrence Siebert, and our Senior ViesiBent of Research and Developrmr
Javan Esfandiari. Due to the specific knowledgg @xperience of these executives regarding thesinglutechnology and market, the los
the services of either one of them would likely da@material adverse effect on the Company. Theact with Mr. Siebert provides that I
Siebert will serve as the Chief Executive Officad&resident of the Company through May 11, 2002e contract with Mr. Esfandiari ha
term of three years ending March 2013. We havaiobd a key man insurance policy for Mr. Esfandiari

We believe our success depends in part on our alylito participate in large testing programs in theU.S. and worldwide and we may nc
be able to do so.

We believe it to be in our best interests to megfuilly participate in large testing programs. R#pation in these programs requires alignr
and engagement with the many other participantegse programs including the World Health OrgainratU.S. Center for Disease Cont
U.S. Agency for International Development, foreignvernments and their agencies, mmvernmental organizations, and HIV ser
organizations. If we are unsuccessful in our ésfew participate in these programs, our operagsglts could be materially harmed.

Although we were profitable in 2009 and 2010 we cawot be certain that we will be able to sustain prafability in 2011.

From the inception of Chembio Diagnostic Systems, In 1985 through the period ended December Q8 2we incurred net losses and
have only become profitable during the last tworge®hile we anticipate growth in our product rewes in 2011 as compared with 2010, t
can be no assurance of this. Moreover in 2011xpeat to make substantial expenditures for regnfagabmissions, product development
other purpose that may make it more difficult toimtein profitability in 2011. Our ability to comtuie profitability in the future will primaril
depend on our ability to increase sales of our pets] reduce production and other costs and toesst@ully introduce new products ¢
enhanced versions of our existing products intontlagketplace. If we are unable to increase ouenaes at a rate that is sufficient to ach
profitability, or adequately control and reduce operating costs, our operating results would beeriely harmed.

To the extent that we are unable to obtain sufficiet product liability insurance or that we incur product liability exposure that is not
covered by our product liability insurance, our opeating results could be materially harmed.

We may be held liable if any of our products, oy @anoduct which is made with the use or incorparaif any of the technologies belongin
us, causes injury of any type or is found otherwissuitable during product testing, manufacturingyketing, sale or usage. We have obt
product liability insurance we have never receiaeproduct liability claim, and have generally nees product liability claims for screen
tests that are accompanied by appropriate disctaiméevertheless, in the event there is a claims, insurance may not fully cover «
potential liabilities. In addition, as we attemiptbring new products to market, we may need toemee our product liability coverage wk
would be a significant additional expense that weeymot be able to afford. If we are unable to wbtufficient insurance coverage at
acceptable cost to protect us, we may be forcadbémdon efforts to commercialize our products os¢hof our strategic partners, which wc
reduce our revenues.
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Risks related to our Common Stor

In the past, our Common Stock has been classified @enny stock, and it continues to be extremelyidjuid, so investors may not be ab
to sell as much stock as they want at prevailing mket prices.

In the past, our Common Stock has been classiBgueany stock. Penny stocks generally are eqaityrgties with a price of less than $E
and trade on the over-tlogunter bulletin board market (OTCBB). As a resatt investor may find it more difficult to disposé or obtait
accurate quotations as to the price of the seesritiat are classified as penny stocks. The “petogk” rules adopted by the Commiss
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amtk(ttie “Exchange Act”subject the sale of the shares of penny stockiissoeegulatior
that impose sales practice requirements on bro&ateds, causing many brokéealers to not trade penny stocks or to only dffierstocks t
sophisticated investors that meet specified netlwor net income criteria identified by the Comriogs These regulations contribute to
lack of liquidity of penny stocks.

At the present time, transactions in our CommorciStre not subject to the “penny stockiles because our average revenue for 2008,
and 2010 exceeded $6 million per year. Howeveretltan be no assurance that transactions in aum®@o Stock will not be subject to
“penny stock” rules in the future.

The average daily trading volume of our Common Stog the over-theounter market was less than 45,000 shares pepwdaythe thre
months ended March 1, 2011. If limited tradingur stock continues, it may be difficult for invest to sell their shares in the public mark:
any given time at prevailing prices.

Our management and larger stockholders exercise sigicant control over our Company.

As of March 1, 2011, our named executive officelisectors and 5% stockholders beneficially ownegrapimately 28.3% of our votir
power. For the foreseeable future, to the exteat these parties vote similarly, they may be ablexercise significant control over m:
matters requiring approval by the board of directmrour stockholders. As a result, they may be tab

« control the composition of our board of directc
« control our management and policies;
« determine the outcome of significant corporatedaations, including changes in control that mapdeeficial to stockholders; ai

« act in each of their own interests, which may donfiith, or be different from, the interests oftheother or the interests of the of
stockholders

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Our administrative offices and research facilites located in Medford, New York. We lease apprately 23,400 square feet of indus
space for $14,683 per month. The space is utilfedresearch and development activities (approietga2,600 square feet), offic
(approximately 2,640 square feet) and productigmpi@ximately 18,160 square feet). The lease tetpires on April 30, 2014. Additior
space may be required as we expand our researcteaetbpment activities. We do not foresee anyifi@ant difficulties in obtaining ar
required additional facilities. We entered inteezond lease effective February 1st of 2010, theipal terms of this lease are the same a
one entered into in 2009 and are as follows: (&@nae term ending April 30, 2014; (b) an initiahtref $11,350 per month plus $3,333 for
second lease (March and April of 2010 are freethednonth of April in 2011, 2012 and 2013 is als®j ; (c) the monthly rent for year twc
the lease (does not apply to second lease) wiltase by the lower of (i) the change in the consipriee index, or (ii) five percent; and (d)
monthly rent for years three through five of thade (years two through four of the second leask)nerease each year by the lower of (i)
change in the consumer price index, or (i) two and half percent.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
From time to time, we may be involved in litigatioglating to claims arising out of our operationghe normal course of business. We k
of no material, existing or pending legal procegdiragainst us, nor are we involved as a plaintifany material proceeding or penc

litigation. There are no proceedings in which afpur directors, officers or affiliates, or anygigtered or beneficial shareholder, is an ad
party or has a material interest that is adversmitanterest.
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PART Il

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT 'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND IS SUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Market Information
Until February 23, 2011, our common stock was gui@te the OTC Bulletin Board under the symbol “CEMThe table below sets forth 1

high and low bid prices per share of our commoglsfor each quarter of our two most recently cortgudiscal years. These prices repre
inter-dealer quotations without retail markup, ntaown, or commission and may not necessarily reptessual transactions.

Fiscal Year 201C High Bid Low Bid
First Quarter $.33 $.20
Second Quarter $.28 $.159
Third Quarter $.29 $.21
Fourth Quarter $.49 $.225

Fiscal Year 200¢ High Bid Low Bid
First Quarte $.135 $.075
Second Quarte $.18 $.085
Third Quartel $.23 $.12
Fourth Quarte $.39 $.20

On February 24, 2011, and since that date, ouk dtas not been quoted on the OTC Bulletin Board,iamow being quoted on the OTC(
which is the second of the three tiers of the OT&®dt Group. The situation is in a state of flmxlave are trying to determine what marke'
believe is best for our stock, considering thethatacosts, liquidity, market strategy, etc. Thaest markets that we will consider are (1)
higher tier of the OTC Market Group called OTC-QX) the NYSE-AMEX, and; (3) NASDAQ.

Our stock is no longer trading on the OTC BulleBioard because the market maker that had filed rallyi to quote our stock on the O
Bulletin Board is no longer providing quotes on tA&C Bulletin Board. It is our understanding tlaalarge number of other market mal
also have ceased to provide quotes on the OTC tBulBoward and that 300 to 500 other companies h@ased being quoted on the C
Bulletin Board during the past few months for theng reason.

This change has nothing to do with Chembio or thality of our company. It is solely related to tesire of the market makers to save «
related to providing quotes on the OTC Bulletin Bba

Rule 15¢9 of the Securities and Exchange Commission, knasithe Penny Stock Rule, imposes requirements akelidealers who si
securities subject to the rule to persons othen thstablished customers and accredited inveskwns.transactions covered by the r
brokers/dealers must make a special suitabilitgrdeination for purchasers of the securities andivecthe purchases'written agreement to t
transaction prior to sale. The Securities and Brge Commission also has rules that regulate biddader practices in connection v
transactions in “penny stocksPenny stocks generally are equity securities wifltiee of less than $5.00 (other than securitiggstered o
certain national securities exchanges or quotetherNASDAQ system, provided that current price antlime information with respect
transactions in that security is provided by thehage or system), except for securities of congsathiat have tangible net assets in exce
$2,000,000 or average revenue of at least $6,000@0the previous three years. The Penny Stodk Requires a broker/ dealer, prior 1
transaction in a penny stock not otherwise exempinfthe rules, to deliver a standardized risk disgte document prepared by
Commission that provides information about penmglss and the nature and level of risks in the pestogk market. The broker/dealer :
must provide the customer with current bid androffigotations for the penny stock, the compensaifdhe broker/dealer and its salespersc
the transaction, and monthly account statementwisigahe market value of each penny stock helthéndustomes account. The bid and of
quotations, and the broker/dealer and salespemmpensation information, must be given to the austoorally or in writing prior to effectir
the transaction and must be given to the customeriting before or with the customertonfirmation. These disclosure requirements Hhias
effect of reducing the level of trading activity he secondary market for penny stock issues. FAesalt of these rules, investors someti
find it difficult to sell shares of penny stock ugss. At the present time, transactions in ourroom stock are not subject to the Penny £
Rule because our average revenue for 2008, 2002@k@ exceeded $6 million per year. However, tlvarebe no assurance that transac
in our common stock will not be subject to the ReStock Rule in the future.

17



Holders

As of March 1, 2011, there were approximately 1,85brd owners of our common stock.

Dividends

The Company has never paid cash dividends onitsram stock and has no plans to do so in the foabdeduture.

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Presented in this table are selected financial idattne past five years ending December 31, 2089 0of the year ended December 31, 200:
Company reclassified its royalty and license experts cost of goods sold, instead of selling, garend administrative expenses, all y

shown conform to this presentation.

Statement of Operations Da

TOTAL REVENUES
GROSS MARGIN

OPERATING COSTS

Research and development
expense:

Selling, general and administrati
expenses

INCOME (LOSS) FRON
OPERATIONS

OTHER INCOME (EXPENSES]

NET INCOME (LOSS)

Dividends accreted/payable
stock to preferred stockholders
and a beneficial conversion
feature

NET INCOME (LOSS)
ATTRIBUTABLE TO
COMMON STOCKHOLDERS

Basic income (loss) per she
Diluted income (loss) per share

Weighted average number
shares outstanding, basic

Weighted average number of
shares outstanding, diluted

Balance Sheet Dat
Working capital

Total asset

Total liabilities
Shareholders' equity (defic

CHEMBIO DIAGNOSTICS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

SELECTED HISTORICAL FINANCIAL DATA

Decembe! Decembe!
31, 201C 31, 200¢
$16,704,70 $13,834,24
$ 8,100,69' 48% $ 5,860,40!
$ 2,586,30 15% $ 2,883,69!
$ 2,940,72. 18% $ 2,659,38:
$ 5,527,02! $ 5,543,07:
$ 2,573,67! $ 317,32

(14,509 (8,267

$ 2,559,16° 15% $ 309,06(

$ - -
$ 2,513,34. $ 309,06
$ 0.04 $ 0)
$ 0.04 $ (0)
$62,102,86 $61,946,43
$70,920,91 $75,041,93
$ 4,560,27 $ 1,493,97!
$ 9,086,17- $ 6,315,25
$ 3,277,23 $ 3,227,33
$ 5,808,94. $ 3,087,91.
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Decembe
31, 2008

$11,049,57

19% $ 3,317,04

$(2,070,66)

121,89¢

Decembe! Decembe!
31, 2007 31, 200¢€
$ 9,230,94 $ 6,502,48!

42% $ 3,851,72. 35% $ 2,795,71

21% $ 2,605,34: 24% $ 1,906,65:

30% $ 3,765,22.

30% $ 1,608,27. 25%

21% $ 1,401,47. 22%

41% $ 4,786,99: 74%

$ 5,671,87 $ 6,188,46
$(2,876,16) $(4,580,19)
249,27. (414,82)

5,645,31!

2% $(1,948,77) -18% $(2,626,89) -28% $(4,995,02)) -77%

3,210,041

-1,948,77! -18% -8,272,20. -90% _-8,205,06' 12€%

$  (0.09
$  (0.09

$61,266,95

$61,266,95

$ 1,663,91.
$ 5,914,94.
$ 3,337,60!
$ 2,577,33.

$  (0.57)

$  (0.80)

$ (057 $  (0.80)
$14,608,47 $10,293,16
$14,608,47 $10,293,16
$ 3,228,72 $ 5,113,23
$ 6,584,99 $ 7,906,57
$ 2,322,17, $ 2,297,19.
$ 4,262,82 $ (939,80)






ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT 'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AN D RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Overview

This discussion and analysis should be read inuomtipn with the accompanying Consolidated FindnStatements and related notes.
discussion and analysis of our financial conditéord results of operations are based upon our ddasad financial statements, which h
been prepared in accordance with accounting piieigenerally accepted in the United States. Tlepgyation of financial statements
conformity with accounting principles generally epted in the United States of America requiresousidke estimates and assumptions
affect the reported amounts of assets and ligdslitilisclosure of any contingent liabilities at fimancial statement date and reported amc
of revenue and expenses during the reporting pe@odan ongoing basis we review our estimates aadmaptions. Our estimates were bi
on our historical experience and other assumptioaswe believe to be reasonable under the ciramss. Actual results are likely to dif
from those estimates under different assumptionsooditions, but we do not believe such differenedls materially affect our financii
position or results of operations. Our critical @eating policies, the policies we believe are mogiortant to the presentation of our finan
statements and require the most difficult, subjectind complex judgments, are outlined below initi€al Accounting Policies, and have nt
changed significantly.

In addition, certain statements made in this repoaly constitute “forward-looking statements”. Tédsrwardiooking statements invol'
known or unknown risks, uncertainties and othetdiacthat may cause the actual results, performaneehievements of the Company tc
materially different from any future results, perfance or achievements expressed or implied byotiweardlooking statements. Specifical
1) our ability to obtain necessary regulatory appt® for our products; and 2) our ability to ingearevenues and operating incomu
dependent upon our ability to develop and sellgoducts, general economic conditions, and othaofa. You can identify forwartboking
statements by terminology such as “may,” “couldill;” “should,” “expects,” “intends,” “plans,” “aticipates,” “believes,” “estimates,”
“predicts,” “potential,” “continues’or the negative of these terms or other comparabieinology. Although we believe that the expecta
reflected-in the forward-looking statements areso@able, we cannot guarantee future results, l@felstivity, performance or achievements.

Except as may be required by applicable law, waatoundertake or intend to update or revise ouwwdndlooking statements, and we assi
no obligation to update any forwakaeking statements contained in this report as sulteof new information or future events
developments. Thus, you should not assume thasitmmnce over time means that actual events anénigeaut as expressed or implied in s
forward4ooking statements. You should carefully reviewd aonsider the various disclosures we make inrgpsrt and our other reports fi
with the Securities and Exchange Commission thatrgit to advise interested parties of the risksettainties and other factors that may a
our business.

All of the Company’s future products that are catkgbeing developed are based on its patented Bathl Platform (DPP®)yhich is a uniqu
diagnostic point-ofzare platform that has certain advantages overalafiew technology. The Company has completedettgyment of foL
products that employ the DPP® technology, two ofclvtwill be marketed under Chembio’s label (DPP®/HV2 Screening Assay and D®P
Syphilis Screen & Confirm) and two that have beavedoped specifically related to private label agnents with The Oswaldo Ci
Foundation (“FIOCRUZ") for the Brazilian public H#a market, as explained below. The DPR®V 1/2 Screening Assay will |
manufactured as an OEM product for the Braziliamk@iapursuant to one of our agreements with FIOCRUZ

The Company has a number of additional producteuddvelopment that employ the DPR®hnology. These product development acti\
are further described below.

All of the Company’s products other than its latdl@av tests (see PRODUCTS and Our Rapid Test Teldyies) are based on the Company’
patented Dual Path Platform (DPP®&}hnology. The Company has had a very activeareseand development effort and has significi
increased its spending on research and developpregtams during the last three years. Howeverdtharty funding from research ¢
development contracts and grants have more thaetdtiese increased research and development esp@nsluding the $654,000 of 2(
clinical trials expenses and also excluding theefief the $1.467MM in QTDP grants awarded in 2010hese externally funded Ré
programs have been instrumental in a number of iraportant ways: first, it has helped the Compamyavoid raising capital during 2008-
2010, which was a very difficult period for fundsimg. Second, it has resulted in significant thpdrty validations of our DRP
technology. Third, it has subsidized the Compangéveloping an increasing capability to developnofacture, validate, and scale up cul
and future DPP® products and product features.
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Research and development activity has been condpbetesseven DPP® products to date. Four were cosgpldiiring 20072009 and three we
completed during 2010.

The four DPP® products completed prior to 2010zaaréollows:

1) DPP® HIV 1/2 Confirmatory Test — See OEM DP® Products, Oswaldo Cruz Foundation OEM I® Agreement:

2) DPP® HIV 1/2 Screening Test See Regulatory Status below and OEM ® Products, Oswaldo Cruz Foundation Agreem

3) DPP® Syphilis Screen & Confirm Test— See Regulatory Status below and OEM ® Products, Oswaldo Cruz Founda
Agreement:

4) DPP® Canine Leishmaniasis— See Regulatory Status and OEM [® Products, Oswaldo Cruz Foundation Agreem

Of the three DPP®roducts we completed development of during 2040, relate to agreements we have with the Oswaldz Eoundatio
(“FIOCRUZ") for the Brazilian public health markefThese are the DPP@roducts for Leptospirosis and a new Syphilis pmdthis is i
single-parameter, treponenmaty version we developed for FIOCRUZ; our agreenfarther contemplates providing our Screen & Con
product as soon as practicable. The third prodectempleted development of during 2010 is the pleii product developed pursuant !
funded product development agreement we enter2ddB with Bio-Rad Laboratories, Inc. (see OEM DPPR®ducts).

During 2010 we also completed the prototype of >apsirameter influenza immurstatus product as per the specifications in a fd
development contract we signed in December 2009 thé Battelle Memorial Institute (See OEM DPP®dRrcts).

As we look forward in 2011, the Company has a nunalb®ngoing and new development programs that eyngile DPP®&echnology. Thes
product development activities are further desctibelow.

DPP® Influenza —We have developed a prototype multiplex test fotJFA/B Antigen Detection and we are on schedule to
complete development and validation of this prodiycthe end of the second quarter of 2011. Achiergrof this plan will enable
us begin clinical testing during the upcoming 2APLFlu season, submit the 510(k) application toRB&\ in early 2012, and
launch the product in the U.S. market in mid-2012.

DPP® Leptospirosis —In 2009 we were awarded a Small Business Innovaigsearch (SBIR) Phase Il grant from the UnitedeS
National Institutes of Health (NIH) to fully develpvalidate, and commercialize a rapid diagnost for Leptospirosis for general

worldwide, and our work is progressing on scheddls.of March 1, 2011, we have identified severaVel leptospiral proteins clon
from a variety of strains that are prevalent irfadé#nt countries. These antigens will supplemeatciirrent test prototype and thus enh
the potential for its use worldwide as a univegszht-of-care test for leptospirosis.

DPP® Tuberculosis— In February 2011 we were awarded an SBIR Phasealtdgrom the NIH to continue development of a di
rapid, accurate, and cost-effective serologicat fes active tuberculosis that can be utilized gsourcdimited settings. Chemb
developed a prototype of this test in the Phaserkvin collaboration with the Infectious DiseasesBarch Institute (“IDRI”), a Seattle-
based biotechnology research organization dedidatéeichnologies that address diseases in the afgngl world; this collaboration w
continue in this second phase of the research emdlapbment grant as well. The grant is effectivaréh 1, 2011. The prototype 1
developed during the Phase | work uses the Dudl Patform (DPP®}echnology together with selected antigens frorargd panel «
novel recombinant antigens identified at IDRI. TRlease | studies demonstrated the feasibility okliging a rapid and accurate test
tuberculosis with required diagnostic performankaracteristics (sensitivity >80%, specificity >95%) Phase I, the proposed rapid
minutes) point-of-care DPP® test for tuberculosil e fully developed, optimized, and evaluatedrnlti-center clinical trials in sevel
countries, followed by validation of production fwools, preparation for regulatory approval and sw@rcialization

DPP® Hepatitis C and DPP® Hepatitis C (HCV) /HIV Oral Fluid Antibody Tests— In 2010 we received data from a study spons
by the CDC that assessed the performance of our pifGsuct. The data confirmed that we had achigemtl performance with this HC
antibody detection test prototype. We have recdrghn invited to participate in some additional CR@dies this year with this and cer
other related prototype products that we have ireld@ment in this area. We have also determin&eekier that the market opportunity
a point-ofeare HCV antibody only (i.e., without antigen de¢imt) test is very limited, and so in addition tmgroving our antiboc
detection test, we are also working on includintigeam detection as well in a new DPR®mat that we have in development, which for
incorporates some of our platform enhancements sdew). We believe this could result in a morenaeercially viable mark
opportunity for this market.

Platform Enhancements -During 2010 and increasingly during 2011 we arerimng and enhancing the capabilities of our BPP
technology. For example, we are further simplifyithe procedure to run certain kinds of tests dged with DPP®and we are als
making antibody and antigen detection availabla gingle test device. This is possible utilizinBB®without certain limitations that ¢
presented when this is attempted with lateral fteahnology. We have also fully integrated the rsewomated assembly system into
manufacturing operation, which will make all of quroduction, both lateral flow and DPP®, more afétctive.
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Other Research & Development Activities- Chembio continues to work with commercial, governtakand private organizations
order to obtain R&D contracts & grant funding faeveélopment projects. These programs have subdidime Company developmel
expenses while expanding the applications for arwikhow related to DPP® and creating importantatmtative relationships.

There can be no assurance that any of these wajdttontinue, meet regulatory or other techniegjuirements and specifications, an
that if continued, will result in completed prodsicdr that such products, if successfully completéti be successfully commercialized.

Regulatory Activities

Regulatory Approvals in Brazil through the OswaldoCruz Foundation (FIOCRUZ) —We have five active projects with FIOCRUZ.
have obtained regulatory approval (See OEM D@lucts, Oswaldo Cruz Foundation OEM). The thinaeare pending regulatory a|
are updated as follows.

DPP® Canine Leishmaniasis:

In January 2011 FIOCRUZ was requested by MAPAfierdecond time to provide additional informatidrhis will further delay the
approval process and based upon recent experieisadifficult to predict timing. We believe theigstrong support for this product
within FIOCRUZ based on our discussions with them.

DPP® Leptospirosis:
Chembio has sent three production lots of this pebtb FIOCRUZ and FIOCRUZ is completing prepanatid the technical file in
order to submit it to ANVISA. FIOCRUZ estimates XNSA approval will be granted during the secondrtgraof 2011.

DPP® Syphilis Treponemal:
Chembio has sent three production lots of this pebtb FIOCRUZ and FIOCRUZ is completing prepanatid the technical file in
order to submit it to ANVISA. FIOCRUZ estimates MNSA approval will be granted during the secondrtgraof 2011.

DPP® HIV 1/2 Screening Assay for Oral Fluid —During 2010 we made significant progress toward roentializing this product.

March 2010, we obtained approval of this produotrfrthe United States PEPFAR program, and more tigcere commenced clinic
trials in the United States in support of, a plahReeMarketing Approval (PMA) application to the FDA. athave enrolled about half
the patients of the clinical protocol and are plagron completing this clinical trial this summeie recently submitted a request to fi
modular PMA to the FDA. This modular PMA approagtovides a mechanism of submitting preclinical datal manufacturir
information for review while still collecting, coniimg and analyzing clinical data. The modular PN$Aa compilation of three sectic
(“modules”);the first, second and third modules are being pdrfor submission to FDA in the first, second dmiddtquarter, respectivel

DPP® Syphilis Screen & Confirm— We are completing the validation lots intendeddimical studies in the United States. Clinica
are being scheduled for 2nd Quarter 2011 to supgherEDA premarket clearance (510k). The completion of the¢e Will also allow
finish the required studies for self-certificatioha CE Mark which we anticipate to file in 2nd quea 2011.

CE Mark for Lateral Flow HIV tests — In order to meet the final requirement of the Comni@chnical Specifications we are rec
collect data on blood donors at a blood donatiamnerewithin the European Community. We experiensetbacks as many of the E
blood centers experienced budget cutbacks restitimgduced resources. We have currently identifieblood donation center in Eur
are in the process of scheduling with the site civlié anticipated to start the study sometime énzhd/3rd Quarter 2011.

Recent Events

During the fourth quarter of 2010 the Company waarded $1.467 million in Qualified Therapeutic usery Project grants (“QTDP’Qnde
Section 48D of the Internal Revenue Code, as edaatder the Patient Protection and Affordable Geactof 2010. This was for six of t
seven projects the Company submitted for consigerafThis was reflected as a reduction in researchdevelopment expenses.

In November 2010, the Company entered into a newhi@ogy Transfer Agreement with the Oswaldo Cruaurdation of Braz
("FIOCRUZ") relating to its DPP(R) point-afare tests for Syphilis. Under the agreementQmapany will transfer technology to FIOCR
for two DPP® syphilis products. The transfer isigéptated to occur over a thrgear period, requiring purchases by FIOCRUZ frore
Company of these products and related componemfegating a minimum of $5.7 million over that periand also requiring a total
approximately $1.8 million of additional revenuesthe Company during the fourth and fifth yearssThd the sixth technology trans
agreement, each covering a different product, edteito between Chembio and FIOCRUZ since 2004.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010 AS COMPARED WITH THE YEAR ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2009

Net income:

Net income for the year ended December 31, 201@ased to $2,513,300 from 309,060 for the year @mirember 31, 2009. The prim
factors for this increase are described below.

Revenues:
Selected Product Categories For the years endec
December 31, 2011 December 31, 200! $ Change % Change
HIV $ 12,111,56 $ 10,792,94 $ 1,318,61. 12.22%
DPP 628,10: 619,53( 8,571 1.3¢%
Other 776,69¢ 960,01¢ (183,319 -19.1(%
Net Product Sales 13,516,35 12,372,49 1,143,861 9.25%
License and royalty revenue 432,23t 121,89¢ 310,34 254.6(%
R&D, milestone and grant revenue 2,756,101 1,339,85! 1,416,24 105.7(%
Total Revenues $ 16,704,700 $ 13,834,24 $ 2,870,45! 20.75%

Revenues for our lateral flow HIV tests and relatechponents during the year ended December 31, 2@t®ased by $1.32 million over -
same period in 2009. This was primarily attriblgaie increased sales to Ethiopia of $2.40 millimn$3.69 million in 2010, as compared v
$1.29 million in 2009. This increase was partialyset by reduced sales to Brazil of lateral flellV tests, which decreased by 64.2%
$1.47 million to $.82 million in 2010, as compangidh $2.29 million in 2009. Sales of our DPR®oducts in 2010 were similar to levels
2009. However most of the DPR#®oduct sold in 2010 related to products that vegmeroved for sale in Brazil as compared to prodscks ir
2009 which were used by FIOCRUZ in submissionetutatory agencies for approval. The increase§ibRmnilestone and grant revenue \
primarily due to $1.55 million earned as a resfifth@ completion of certain milestones. The miles®include $125,000 earned in June !
as a result of the completion of the milestoneun Bio-Rad agreement, $804,000 from Battelle for influeimzanunity test and milestone fe
of $400,000 and $225,000 from FIOCRUZ that werggered upon the approval of the Company’s DRHA® 1/2 Screening Assay and
DPP® HIV 1/2 Confirmatory rapid tests, respectiveR&D revenues also include funds, recognized rias expenses are incurreddsis
from Phase Il NIH grant for Leptospirosis, whichsmeffective as of June 1, 2009. License and rgy@tenue includes fee payment:
$340,000 from BidRad pursuant to the License Agreement we signel tivém in January 2009 and for royalties from Braader our 200
technology transfer and license agreement.

Gross Margin:

Gross Margin related to For the years endec
Net Product Sales: December 31, 201! December 31, 200! $ Change % Change

Gross Margin per Statement of
Operations $ 8,100,69' $ 5,860,40! $ 2,240,29: 38.23%
Less: R&D, milestone, grant,

license and royalties 3,188,34. 1,461,75! 1,726,58! 118.12%
Gross Margin from Net Product
Sales $ 4912,35 $ 4,398,651 $ 513,70! 11.68%
Gross Margin % 36.3¢% 35.55%

The increase in our gross margin was primarily ttuéhe increase in non-product revenues (see reviédems other than product salese¢
revenues above). The increase in our product grasgin resulted primarily from reduced royalty erpe due to product sold in 201(
countries where a lower rate applies than in 2009.
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Research and Development:

This category includes costs incurred for produesearch and development, regulatory approvals,niesth support, evaluations &
registrations.

Selected expense line: For the years endec
December 31, 201f December 31, 200! $ Change % Change

Clinical and Regulatory Affairs:
Wages and related cost $ 424,03¢ $ 321,83( $ 102,20¢ 31.7€¢%
Consulting 30,52¢ 35,56( (5,035 -14.1€6%
Share-based compensatiol 11,88 12,91¢ (1,035 -8.01%
Clinical trials 654,25: 69,49¢ 584,75: 841.3¢%
Other 74,25¢ 32,05¢ 42,19¢ 131.6%%
Total Regulatory $ 1,194,95. $ 471,86, $ 723,09( 153.2%%
R&D Other than Regulatory:
Wages and related cost $ 1,889,70. $ 1,541,29! $ 348,407 22.6(%
Consulting 19,43( 88,60( (69,170 -78.01%
Share-based compensatiol 73,65¢ 62,18( 11,47¢ 18.4¢%
Materials and supplies 635,91: 462,80¢ 173,10t 37.4(%
Other 239,53: 256,95 (17,427 -6.7¢%
Total other than Regulatory $ 2,858,23. $ 2,411,83' $ 446,39¢ 18.51%

$ 4,053,18. $ 2,883,691 $ 1,169,48: 40.5€6%
Less: QTDP grant 1,466,87 - 1,466,871 100.0(%
Total Research and Developmer $ 2,586,30: $ 2,883,691 $ (297,389 -10.31%

Expenses for Clinical & Regulatory Affairs for tiyear ended December 31, 2010 increased by $7228@@mpared to the same perio
2009. This was primarily due to expenses we incLime2010 for clinical trials conducted for our DRIV Screen Assay. In addition, way
and related costs also contributed to the increase.

R&D expenses other than Clinical & Regulatory Affaincreased by $446,000 in the year ended DeceBih&@010 as compared with the s
period in 2009 and were primarily related to arréase in personnel and material costs requireétionn the work related to funded resei
and development contracts and grants all relatedutopatented DPP®&echnology. These increases were partially offgeta decrease
consulting cost.

On November 1, 2010, the Company was notified key IRRS that it received awards in the total amoun$h467 million relating to s
“Qualifying Therapeutic Discovery Projects” undbetU.S. Patient Protection and Affordable Care #2010 (P.L. 111t48), a program th
was created as part of the major United Stategdétealth care reform legislation enacted eathés year. The $1.467 million reduced R
expenses in the fourth quarter of 2010.
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Research and development expenses, before the @f@® net of revenues from R&D, milestones anthigrdsee sub-headirigevenue
above) was $1,297,000 for the year ended Deceniher03.0 ($4,053,000 less $2,756,000, this inclutiegal trials of $654,000 and does
include the QTDP reduction) compared to $1,174(@$20884,000 less $1,340,000, this includes clintidals of $69,000) for the same periot
20009.

Selling, General and Administrative Expense:

Selected expense line: For the years endec
December 31, 2011 December 31, 200! $ Change % Change

Wages and related cost $ 1,076,441 $ 1,075,53. $ 914 0.0¢%
Consulting 215,39: 165,37: 50,02( 30.25%
Commissons 183,76. 302,51! (118,75) -39.2€%
Share-based compensatiol 64,42¢ 98,35¢ (33,92) -34.4%
Marketing materials 17,62% 22,77¢ (5,152 -22.62%
Investor relations/investment

bankers 197,18: 72,88t¢ 124,29! 170.5%
Legal, accounting and SOX 40«

compliance 563,27 470,84 92,43¢ 19.63%
Travel, entertainment and trade

shows 59,00: 61,31¢ (2,319 -3.71%
Other 563,60: 389,78: 173,82: 44.5%%
Total S, G &A $ 2,940,72. $ 2,659,38. $ 281,33¢ 10.5¢%

Selling, general and administrative expenses feryeémar ended December 31, 2010 increased by 10s686mapared with the same perio
2009. This was primarily due to the recording 8#H00 in Brazilian tax withholdings on the milestopayments, an increase in inve
relations and an increase in legal, accounting@@X 404 expenses for compliance and for pursuirssipte strategic opportunities, partii
offset by a decrease in commissions as a residivar sales in Brazil.

Other Income and Expense:

For the years endec

December 31, 2011 December 31, 200! $ Change % Change
Other income (expense $ (3,929 $ (6,696 $ 2,77: -41.41%
Interest income 4,14 9,03z (4,88%) -54.09%
Interest expense (14,727 (10,609) (4,124 38.8%
Total Other Income and (Expense $ (14,509 $ (8,267 $ (6,23€) 75.4%

Other income and (expense) for the year ended Dieee1, 2010 decreased approximately $6,200 tdo$04s compared with $8,300 for
same period in 2009, primarily as a result of aréase in interest expense due to the term logn MBBC and a decrease in interest inc
due to a decrease in interest rates in intdyeating accounts, both of which were partially effsy a lower loss on the sale of an asset in
compared to a retirement of an asset in 2010.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010 AS COMPARED WITH THE THREE
MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009

CHEMBIO DIAGNOSTICS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED

(UNAUDITED)
December 31, 2011 December 31, 200

REVENUES:
Net product sale $ 5,179,221 $ 3,127,45.
License and royalty reveni 31,48( 38,18¢
R&D, milestone and grant revenue 456,13¢ 385,80:
TOTAL REVENUES 5,666,84. 3,5651,44.
Cost of product sale 3,175,98. 1,920,63!
GROSS MARGIN 2,490,85! 1,630,80!
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Research and development exper (236,14 755,83’
Selling, general and administrative exper 797,00¢ 657,30¢

560,85¢ 1,413,141
INCOME FROM OPERATIONS 1,929,99! 217,65¢
OTHER INCOME (EXPENSES):
Other expens - -
Interest incomt 1,40 1,94¢
Interest expense (4,800 (2,399

(3,400 (445)

INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES 1,926,59! 217,21
Provision for income taxe 45,82: -
NET INCOME $ 1,880,771 $ 217,21
Basic earnings per shar $ 0.0z $ 0.0C
Diluted earnings per share $ 0.0: $ 0.0C
Weighted average number of shares outstanding, bax 62,204,74 61,950,98
Weighted average number of shares outstanding, dited 70,513,28 75,365,55

See accompanying notes to consolidated financiatesments
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Net Income:

Net income, on an unaudited basis, increased 8881800 for the three months ended December 310 #6in $217,200 for the three mon
ended December 31, 2009. The primary factorshisribhcrease are described below.

Revenues:
Selected Product Categories For the three months endec
December 31, 2011 December 31, 200! $ Change % Change

HIV $ 4,379,09: $ 2,963,67. $ 1,415,42 47.7¢%
DPP 621,58( - 621,58( 100.0(%
Other 178,54t 163,78: 14,76¢ 9.01%
Net Product Sales 5,179,22i 3,127,45. 2,051,77. 65.61%
License and royalty revenue 31,48( 38,18¢ (6,70€) -17.56%
R&D, milestone and grant revenue 456,13¢ 385,80: 70,33t 18.2%
Total Revenues $ 5,666,84; $ 3,651,44. $ 2,115,40: 59.5€6%

Revenues for our lateral flow HIV tests during theee months ended December 31, 2010 increaseddmgxamately 48% or $1,415,000 o
the same period in 2009. This was primarily atir@fle to increased sales in Africa which incredse81,638,000 to $2,537,000, and part
offset by a decrease in sales to North America3#,800. The increase in DPP® revenues was prittigidae to sales of our DPP&IV
Screen test. The increase in R&D revenues wasapityndue to revenue from our contract developmagteement with BidRad an
IDRI. License and royalty income represents oyaties from Brazil under our 2004 technology tfansind license agreement.

Gross Margin:

Gross Margin related to For the three months endec
Net Product Sales: December 31, 2011  December 31, 200! $ Change % Change

Gross Margin per Statement of
Operations $ 2,490,850 $ 1,630,80! $ 860,05! 52.7%
Less: R&D, milestone, grant,

license and royalties 487,61t 423,98’ 63,62¢ 15.01%
Gross Margin from Net Product
Sales $ 2,003,24; $ 1,206,81i $ 796,42¢ 65.99%
Gross Margin % 38.6(% 38.5%

The increase in our product gross margin resultadapily from reduced royalty expense due to pradudd in 2010 to countries where a loy
rate applies than in 2009.
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Research and Development:

This category includes costs incurred for reguiatgprovals, product evaluations and registrations.

Selected expense line: For the three months endec
December 31, 2011 December 31, 200! $ Change % Change

Clinical and Regulatory Affairs:
Wages and related cost $ 145,26 $ 96,28 $ 48,98! 50.81%
Consulting - 5,61(C (5,610 -100.0(%
Share-based compensatiol 2,122 4,667 (2,54%) -54.52%
Clinical trials 253,46: 23,44¢ 230,01! 980.9%%
Other 5,84¢ 7,852 (2,00%) -25.56%
Total Regulatory 406,69: 137,86 268,83. 195.0(%
R&D Other than Regulatory:
Wages and related cost 583,28! 420,08t 163,19 38.85%
Consulting 24C 25,05: (24,817 -99.04%
Share-based compensatiol 10,95( 9,72 1,22¢ 12.62%
Materials and supplies 158,04 102,49: 55,55( 54.2(%
Other 71,52( 60,62: 10,897 17.91%
Total other than Regulatory $ 824,03t 617,97¢ 206,06( 33.3/%

$ 1,230,72' $ 755,83 $ 474,89: 62.8%
Less: QTDP grant 1,466,87! - 1,466,871 100.0%
Total Research and Developmer  $ (236,14) $ 755,83 $ (991,989 -131.2%

Expenses for Clinical & Regulatory Affairs for thleree months ended December 31, 2010 increase@&§,#0 as compared to the si
period in 2009. This was primarily due to expensesincurred in 2010 for clinical trials conducteal our DPP®HIV Screen Assay.
addition, wages and related costs also contribtaté¢lde increase.

R&D expenses other than Clinical & Regulatory Affaincreased by $206,000 in the year three mon#gteDber 31, 2010 as compared
the same period in 2009 and were primarily relatean increase in personnel and material costsrestjto perform the work related to func
research and development contracts and grantslaied to our patented DPR&hnology. These increases were partially offiged decrea:
in consulting cost.

On November 1, 2010, the Company was notified ey IRRS that it received awards in the total amoun$h467 million relating to s
“Qualifying Therapeutic Discovery Projects” undbetU.S. Patient Protection and Affordable Care #2010 (P.L. 111148), a program th
was created as part of the major United Stategdétiealth care reform legislation enacted eathié year. The $1.467 million reduced R
expenses in the fourth quarter of 2010.

Research and development expenses, before the @f@® net of revenues from R&D, milestones anthigrdsee sub-headirigevenue
above) was $775,000 for the year three months Dieeeil, 2010 ($1,231,000 less $456,000, this iredwdinical trials of $253,000 and d
not include the QTDP reduction) compared to $370,(8756,000 less $386,000, this includes clinidalg of $23,000) for the same periot
20009.
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Selling, General and Administrative Expenses:

Selected expense line: For the three months endec
December 31, 2011 December 31, 200! $ Change % Change

Wages and related cost $ 332,82: $ 324,13. $ 8,69: 2.68%
Consulting 43,37 22,25( 21,127 94.95%
Commissons 83,52¢ 15,95 67,57¢ 423.6%
Share-based compensatiol 11,54¢ 30,41 (18,86%) -62.02%
Marketing materials 3,91 5,41¢ (1,502 -27.72%
Investor relations/investment

bankers 36,41: 35,83¢ 57z 1.6(%
Legal, accounting and SOX 40«

compliance 123,04¢ 123,50( (452) -0.371%
Travel, entertainment and trade

shows 9,67¢ 13,84¢ (4,173 -30.139%
Other 152,67! 85,95¢ 66,72: 77.6%
Total S, G &A $ 797,00t $ 657,30¢ $ 139,69 21.25%

Selling, general and administrative expenses ferttiiee months ended December 31, 2010 increas@d.By as compared with the st
period in 2009. This was primarily due to an irs® in commissions for the increased sales maBeatdl of our DPP@products, increase
consulting and an increase in board fees, partidfset by a decrease in share-based compensation.

Other Income and (Expense):

For the three months endec

December 31, 2011 December 31, 200! $ Change % Change
Other income $ - $ - $ - 100.0(%
Interest income 1,40( 1,94¢ (549 -28.1%
Interest expense (4,800 (2,399 (2,406) 100.5(%
Total Other Income and (Expense $ (3,400 $ (445) $ (2,955 664.02%

Other income and (expenses) for the three monttiscebecember 31, 2010 decreased approximately $3®@ompared with the same pe
in 2009, primarily from an increase in interest @xpe due to the term loan with HSBC and a decrieais¢erest income due to a decreas
interest rates in interest-bearing accounts.
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

For the three months endec

December 31, 2011 December 31, 200! $ Change % Change

Net cash provided by operating

activities $ 1,016,851 $ 251,92° $ 810,74t 321.89%
Net cash used in investing activitie (182,29) (376,989 194,69¢ -51.65%
Net cash provided by financing

activities 233,55t (18,92¢) 252,48¢ -1334.0(%
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND

CASH EQUIVALENTS $ 1,068,111 $ (143,98) $ 1,257,92 -873.6%%

The Company had an increase in cash for the yeledeBecember 31, 2010 which is primarily attriblgato cash provided by operations
cash provided by financing activities ($250,000rtéoan from HSBC). The decrease in the 2009 pasiquimarily attributable to the cash u
in investing activities, whicincludes the purchase of fixed assets. The ineteaash from operations in 2010 was primarily ladtidble to ne
income along with norash expenses aggregating $2,986,000. Net incochedes the reduction of R&D expenses from the QTHdhts ¢
$1,467,000, which if not granted in 2010, woulduteg the cash from net income, along with reash expenses, aggregating $1,519,00
addition, operating activities included increasadaruals and payables of $150,000, a decreaseéntories of $207,000, a decrease in pre
expenses of $62,000 and a decrease in other a$sk98,000, which were offset by an increase irenables of $2,185,000 and a decrea:
deferred revenue of $296,000. The decrease inrddfeevenue was primarily due to the achievemért milestone for which payment v
received in January 2009 and for which there wasaumterpart in 2010. The Company’s nmash expenses totaled $554,000, which con:
of $284,000 from depreciation expense, $170,06harebased compensation expense and $100,000 in theization of licenses. Investi
activities represent the Compagsyhvestment in fixed assets. The cash providea financing activities is primarily due to thertetoan fron
HSBC of $250,000.

The increase in accounts receivable was due t€dmepany making most of the quarter's sales in Dbeemnd has collected 67% as of M:
1, 2011.

In addition on January 3, 2011, the Company magepat to Bio-Rad for the $875,000 due under the-8INcense agreement.

RECENT DEVELOPMENTS AND CHEMBIO’S PLAN OF OPERATION S FOR THE NEXT TWELVE MONTHS

Chembio achieved record financial results in 201.6very respect. The Company recorded a nearly iBtbéase in total revenues in
2010 versus 2009. This increase was on the streafga 118% increase of non-product revenues tited of $3.19 million (license,
royalty, R&D, milestone and grant revenues) vet$iiglé million in 2009, and also due to a 9.2% iaseein Net Product Sales to
$13.52 million from $12.37 million in 2009. Fourttuarter 2010 Total Revenues of $5.67 million repréed an increase of 65%
compared with the same period in 2009, and alscesepted an increase of 25.8% over the Companggiqus record quarterly
revenues which were $4.51 million in the third qeaof 2010. The Net Product sales in the fourtartar included strong performance
from both international and US market sales of lateral flow products, as well as from the firstooercial shipment of our DPP®
HIV oral fluid HIV test to FIOCRUZ in Brazil.

These strong top line results produced record gposfts, both in dollars and also as a percentafgsales. Our 2010 gross profit
dollars increased over 38% from last year’s reg@mass profit dollars of $5.86 million, to $8.10 hah or 49% of Total Revenues.
Fourth quarter Gross profit was $2.49 million, adskecord, and this was primarily based on thengtreof our Net Product Sales in the
quarter.

The record non-product revenues are attributabtdinued progress in a number of developmentrarog, all based on our DPP®
technology, including significant accomplishmentkiet further validated our platform and our cap#bito develop diagnostic

products serving large markets and/or importantthezare objectives. These accomplishments inctwde regulatory approvals in

Brazil, completion of performance specifications foultiplex products we were contracted to devempBio-Rad Laboratories, Inc.

and for the US government’s contractor for pandeffnipreparedness, and several evaluations tha e@mnpleted on our DPP® HIV
Screening Assay for use with oral fluid or bloodhgdes.
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Operating Expenses as reported in our auditedtsesshich include Research & Development (R&D) BEnges as well as Selling,
General and Administrative Expenses (“SGA”) werseasially unchanged from 2009. However these additanbers include three
uncommon expense items as compared to prior petioals need to be pointed out. First, SG&A expenise2010 included
approximately $275,000 of expenses incurred in eotion with two specific potential strategic oppmities, including approximately
$100,000 for legal fees, including patent reseamth due diligence, $100,000 for outside direct8mcial Committee fees, $37,500
for a valuation consultant deposit, $25,000 forestment consulting fees and $12,500 in variousrakpenses. One of these potential
opportunities, which was unsolicited, involved dlikgence, travel and negotiation, and preparatiban written agreement which was
not finalized, and the other involved travel andeesive negotiations and due diligence. Both opmities involved numerous
meetings, conferences and discussions by and watmagement, Chembio's outside directors and coubst, for internal strategy
sessions and with the proposed strategic partreithé of the potential opportunities ultimatelysuied in any material agreement.
The Company’s senior management and board bel&vesgly in the value that has been created anapipertunities there are for
further increasing shareholder value, particulashkce it begins to commercialize the products indévelopment and clinical
pipeline. Second, we recorded the benefit of thd@ million we received in Qualified Therapeudiscovery Project (QTDP) grants
in the fourth quarter of 2010, which amount wasocacted for as a reduction in R&D Expense in thatgge Finally, we expended
approximately $650,000 of clinical trial expensas2D10 related to our oral fluid HIV test PMA, inding $250,000 in the fourth
quarter. The $275,000 in strategic investigatioats in SG&A expenses, $1.467 million QTDP bengfitpense reduction), and the
$650,000 clinical trial expense each had a matenpact on our 2010 net income.

Our operating results in 2011 are likely to benkefitn continued growth in sales to those custoraacsmarkets that we participated in
during 2010, although there can be no assurant@sof We have recently reviewed the 2010 resuitls the marketing team we work
with at Alere and we believe they are well posiddrto deliver additional growth this year. We bedi that Alere achieved at least
25% revenue growth with our products on their baok®010 versus 2009, however due to inventoryllelianges at Alere this fact is
not reflected in our 2010 results. Based on the pvoduct approvals we received in Brazil in 2049 well as three product approvals
that are pending in Brazil, we anticipate significeevenues from this customer in 2011 as wellugiiothere can be no assurance of
this. We have additional opportunities in otherrkets for our products that we are developing whi€hrealized, would provide
additional revenues for our products.

The $2.9 million Phase Il grant award we receiveanfthe NIH in February, which is effective March2D11, will help to subsidize
our Operating Expenses, while also advancing tleip research and development aims of such gradhembio is budgeted to
receive approximately 63.5% of the awarded amamépproximately $1,842,700, if award funding couaés over the full three years
as is expected; IDRI would receive the balance sisbaontractor to Chembio. The grant award buidgapproximately equal in each
grant year, or approximately $967,000 per year.irAsll such grants, award funding in the second third years is subject to
satisfactory progress and availability of funds.

We believe that the above-described anticipatedyw sales, as well as proceeds already receiveldor anticipated from
development fees, grants (including the QTDP gjarged milestone fees will be sufficient to fundrcclinical and regulatory
programs, which may exceed $2.0 million in costardu2011, however there can be no assurance &f thicordingly we need to
manage all aspects of our costs to ensure thatavaotl compromise the timetable for commercializogr new products. The
automated assembly equipment we installed andatelidin 2010 is fully operational and should hedpi@ reduce our manufacturing
costs or offset other increases, as it alreadyird@2010. We believe certain quality control measuthat we have implemented will
also help to increase production yields, also limgeunit costs. We will nonetheless continuallgess our Operating Expenses so as
to ensure that our expenditures are aligned withstrategy and within our means. Our cash positimrking capital, and shareholder
equity is stronger than ever. As of March 1, 2@id had a cash balance in excess of the balaneected| in our 2010 audited
statements as a result of our collection, in Janaad February, of large accounts receivable bakmeflected on our December 31
balance sheet, and even after paying off the $805)@lance due to Bio-Rad Laboratories, Inc., wiicturred in early January. We
also have a $250,000 line of credit with our barkalv has a zero balance.

We have made significant progress in completingrémgiirements for submitting our Pre-Marketing Apmal (PMA) Application to
the FDA for our DPP® HIV Screening Assay and thee raf progress is accelerating. We are approximdtalfway through the
clinical trials for this product and the trials groceeding well. We recently submitted the firgtdule in our PMA application to the
FDA, we plan to submit our second module duringtbeond quarter, and the third and final modulénduthe third quarter. This
timetable, if maintained, could result in an ap@oliefore the end of this year, although appromaR012 is a much more likely
scenario, although there can be no assurance éubiso We have also made significant progressun Syphilis and Flu programs,
even though we are delayed from the timetable vaepnaviously anticipated. We are very exciteduitibe opportunity we have to
potentially be the first dual marker (treponemal aon-treponemal) POCT for syphilis in the Unitddt8s.

We believe that our strategy of developing a carblip health brand, initially with our DPP® HIV Qr&luid test and our DPP®
Syphilis Screen & Confirm test, supplemented by O&dportunities in all other market segments, isshiased upon what we have
in our pipeline today. Recent studies publishedhgyCDC confirm the value of our dual marker DP8@hilis Screen & Confirm
test, and we believe that there are sales opptidsrin the U.S. and international rapid HIV tesirkets for our DPP® oral fluid HIV
test that are not available to our lateral flow Veholood tests. We may identify other product apyagities that cause us to modify this
strategy.

We will also need to begin to develop our sales magketing organization, and brand, as we get cltiseommercialization of our
products. While this is a costly investment, ibsld enable us to retain a larger portion of ouit selling prices which, if that occurs,
will result in our having higher sales and grossgires, though also higher marketing expenses.
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Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in eonfty with accounting principles generally accepte the United States of America requ
management to make estimates and assumptionsftbett the amounts reported in the financial stateim@nd accompanying notes. Ac
results could differ materially from those estinsate

We believe that there are several accounting dithat are critical to understanding our histérég®d future performance, as these pol
affect the reported amounts of revenue and the migmficant areas involving managemenjudgments and estimates. These signif
accounting policies relate to revenue recognitimsearch and development costs, valuation of ilmwgnvaluation of londived assets at
income taxes. These policies, and the relatedepiures, are described in detail below.

Revenue Recogniti—

We recognize revenue for product sales in accoedariih Securities and Exchange Commission Staffoioting Bulletin No. 104, Revenu
Recognition” (“SAB 104”). Under SAB 104, revenue is recognized when thepeiisuasive evidence of an arrangement, deliverypbasrre:
or services have been rendered, the sales praetesminable, and collectability is reasonably es$u Revenue typically is recognized at 1
of shipment. Sales are recorded net of discougltstes and returns.

For certain contracts, we recognize revenue fromDR&ilestone and grant revenues when earned. &wamtinvoiced after expenses
incurred. Revenues from projects or grants furidextivance are deferred until earned.

For certain collaborative research projects, wegaize revenue by defining milestones at the irioapdf the agreement and applying
milestone method of revenue recognition for reléamtracts.

Research & Development Co—

Research and development activities consist priynafinew product development, continuing enginegffior existing products, regulatory ¢
clinical trial costs. Costs related to researcth development efforts on existing or potential g are expensed as incurred.

Valuation of Inventories —

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or etanksing the first-in, firsbut method (FIFO) to determine cost. Our policyoigeriodicall
evaluate the market value of the inventory andstage of product life cycle, and record a reseoveafy inventory considered slow moving
obsolete. For example, each additional 1% oblats inventory would reduce such inventory by agpnately $14,000.

Allowance for doubtful accoun—

Our policy is to review our accounts receivableaperiodic basis, no less than monthly. On a gugrbasis an analysis is made of
adequacy of our allowance for doubtful accounts adpistments are made accordingly. The currdotvahce is approximately 1%
accounts receivable. For example each additioftabflaccounts receivable that becomes uncollectildeld reduce such balance of acco
receivable by approximately $40,000.

Income Taxe—

Income taxes are accounted for under Financial Aatiog Standards Board (“FASB”) authoritative guida (“Guidance”which requires tr
asset and liability method of accounting for defdrincome taxes. Deferred tax assets and liasilitre determined based on the differ
between the financial statement and tax basessetsaand liabilities. Deferred tax assets or litgds at the end of each period are deterrr
using the tax rate expected to be in effect whgagare actually paid or recovered. For exampien ¢hough we have become profitable
may be unable to utilize our deferred tax assetchvapproximates $7,246,000 at December 31, 2010.

The Guidance also requires that a valuation all@eegdre established when it is more likely than hat &ll or a portion of a deferred tax a
will not be realized. A review of all available gitve and negative evidence needs to be consid@reldding a companyg’ current and pe
performance, the market environment in which thegany operates, length of carryback and carryfaivpariods and existing contracts -
will result in future profits.

Forming a conclusion that a valuation allowancedsneeded is difficult when there is negative otije evidence such as cumulative lossi
recent years. Cumulative losses weigh heavilyhim dverall assessment. As a result, we deterntimgtdit was appropriate to establis
valuation allowance for the full amount of our deéel tax assets.

The Guidance also prescribes a comprehensive nfodelecognizing, measuring, presenting and disntpsin the consolidated financ
statements tax positions taken or expected to bentmn a tax return, including a decision whetheffite or not to file in a particul
jurisdiction.

The calculation of our tax liabilities involves tlirtherent uncertainty associated with the applicatf complex tax laws. We are subjec
examination by various taxing authorities. We badi¢ghat as a result of our losses sustained tg dayeexamination would result in a reduc
of our net operating losses rather than a taxliigbiAs such, we have not provided for additioteates.
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The above listing is not intended to be a comprsivenlist of all of our accounting policies. In macases, the accounting treatment
particular transaction is specifically dictated dgcounting principles, generally accepted in thetddnStates of America, with no need
management’s judgment in their application. Thaeealso areas in which managemepidgment in selecting any viable alternative waud
produce a materially different result. See ouritddfinancial statements and notes thereto whishtain accounting policies and ot
disclosures required by accounting principles galheaccepted in the United States of America.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

The Consolidated Financial Statements and schedhdgsonstitute Item 8 are attached at the entthiefAnnual Report on Form 1K- An
index to these Financial Statements and schedukdso included on page F-1 of this Annual ReporEorm 10-K.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON AC COUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE.

There have been no disagreements, or transactioasemts similar to those which involved such disagnents or reportable events, \
former accountants on any matter of accountingciplas or practices, financial statement disclosur@uditing scope or procedure, wt
disagreements, if not resolved to the satisfactibrihe former accountant, would have caused it ttkenreference to the subject me
disagreements in connection with any of its reports

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

(@) Disclosure Controls and Procedutdsder the supervision and with the participationoaf senior management, consisting of
chief executive officer and our chief financial ioffr, we conducted an evaluation of the effectigsnef the design and operation of
disclosure controls and procedures (as defineduiledR13a-15(e) and 15kb(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934mesnded (tt
“Exchange Act"), as of the end of the period codel®y this report (the "Evaluation Date"). Based that evaluation, the Compansy’
management, including our chief executive officed &hief financial officer, concluded that as o thvaluation Date our disclosure cont
and procedures were effective to ensure that irditiom required to be disclosed by us in the repthras$ we file under the Exchange Ac
recorded, processed, summarized and reported wifthitime periods specified in SEC rules and for@sir disclosure controls and proced:
include, without limitation, controls and procedsirgesigned to ensure that information requiredetalisclosed by us in our Exchange
reports is accumulated and communicated to our genant, including our chief executive officer aruief financial officer, as appropriate
allow timely decisions regarding required discl@sur

Management's Annual Report on Internal Control Cri@ancial Reporting. The Company's managemergsponsible for establishing ¢
maintaining an adequate system of internal corvelr financial reporting (as defined in Exchanged Rale 13a15(f)). Our internal contr
over financial reporting is a process, under thpesuision of our chief executive officer and chiafancial officer, designed to provi
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability imdincial reporting and the preparation of financtdtements for external purpose:
accordance with generally accepted accounting iplegin the United States. These internal costovler financial reporting processes inc
policies and procedures that:

(1) Pertain to the maintenance of records that in regtsle detail accurately and fairly reflect the s@ctions and dispositions of the asse
the Company

(2) Provide reasonable assurance that transactiomre@eded as necessary to permit preparation ofiiaé statements in accordance \
generally accepted accounting principles, and téegipts and expenditures of the Company are bmiade only in accordance w
authorizations of management and directors of th@any; anc

(3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding preventiimely detection of unauthorized acquisition, wsedisposition of the Compan
assets that could have a material effect on tlenéial statement:

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohwver financial reporting may not prevent or @etmisstatements. Therefore, even tl
systems determined to be effective can provide medgonable assurance of achieving their contijeltibes.

In evaluating the effectiveness of our internaltoanover financial reporting, our management uttel criteria set forth by the Committee
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commis$@@SO) in Internal Control Integrated Framework. Based on this evaluatiam
management concluded that our internal control émencial reporting was effective as of Decemhir2010.

This annual report does not include an attestatéport of our registered public accounting firm aetjng internal control over financ
reporting.

Management's report was not subject to attestaétjoour registered public accounting firm pursuanthe rules of the Securities and Exche
Commission that permit the Company to provide anjnagement's report in this annual report.

(b) Changes in Internal Control over Ficial Reporting. There were no changes in ourriiaecontrol over financial reporting identifi
in connection with the evaluation required by paapd (d) of Rule 13a-15 or Rule 138-under the Exchange Act that occurred during
Companys last fiscal quarter of the period covered by thjgort that have materially affected, or are raabty likely to materially affect, o
internal control over financial reporting.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

Not applicable
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PART llI
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNA NCE
Directors and Executive Officers

Lawrence A. Siebert (54) President, Chief Executive Officer and Directorr. 8iebert was appointed President of Chembio Duafjcs, Inc
and a member of our board of directors upon consatiom of the merger. Mr. Siebert has been Chairofa®hembio Diagnostic Systems |
for approximately thirteen years and its Presidsince May 2002. Mr. Siebest’background is in private equity and venture ed
investing. From 1982 to 1991, Mr. Siebert was eisded with Stanwich Partners, Inc, which duringttperiod invested in middle mar
manufacturing and distribution companies. From2L89 1999, Mr. Siebert was an investment consulgartt business broker with Siet
Capital Corp. and Siebert Associates LLC, and wasirecipal investor in a privately held test andaserement company which was sol
2002. Mr. Siebert received a JD from Case WedRaserve University School of Law in 1981 and a BighviDistinction in Economics fro
the University of Connecticut in 1978. Mr. Siebast president and CEO is an integral part of then@tfio management team. His experis
in the rapid test field and financing markets mhuhe an excellent candidate for serving on the beend as its chairman.

Richard J. Larkin (54), Chief Financial Officer. Mr. Larkin was appointed Chief Financial Officer of Chembio Diagnostitss. upot
consummation of the merger in 2004. Mr. Larkin rees our financial activities and information eyss. Mr. Larkin has been the ClI
Financial Officer of Chembio Diagnostic Systems.Isimice September 2003. Prior to joining Chembiagbostic Systems Inc., Mr. Larl
served as CFO at Visual Technology Group from Ma@§@to September 2003, and also led their conswyltprogram that provided hands-
expertise in all aspects of financial service, udghg the initial assessment of client financighaging requirements within anEnterpris
Resource Planning (Manufacturing) environment tglotraining and implementation. Prior to joiningf®, he served as CFO at Prc
International Corporation from May 1987 to Janu2®@0. Mr. Larkin holds a BBA in Accounting from @bng College and is a member
the American Institute of Certified Public Accounts

Javan Esfandiari (44),Executive VP of Research and Development. Mr. ititai joined Chembio Diagnostic Systems, Inc, 00@ Mr
Esfandiari co-founded, and became aoeoier of Sinovus Biotech AB where he served asdbireof Research and Development concel
lateral flow technology until Chembio DiagnosticsByms Inc. acquired Sinovus Biotech AB in 20000n#r1993 to 1997, Mr. Esfandiari v
Director of Research and Development with €ite Biotech/National Veterinary Institute, Uppsa@weden, which was working
collaboration with Sinovus Biotech AB on developren veterinary lateral flow technology. Mr. Esthari received his B.Sc. in Clinic
Chemistry and his M. Sc. in Molecular Biology frarand University, Sweden. He has published articlegarious veterinary journals and
co-authored articles on tuberculosis serology WithLyashchenko.

Richard Bruce (57), Vice President, Operations. Mr. Bruce was hiredAwril 2000 as Director of Operations. He is respbles for
manufacturing, maintenance, inventory, shippingeidng, and warehouse operations. Prior to jgin@hembio Diagnostic Systems Inc.,
held director level positions at Wyeth Laboratorfeam 1984 to 1993. From 1993 to 1998, he held oterimanagement positions in
Operations department at Biomerieux. From 19980@0, he held a management position at V.l. Tedgies. Mr. Bruce has over thirty ye
of operations management experience with Fortur® d&lnpanies in the field of imitro diagnostics and blood fractionation. Mr. Be
received his BS in Management from National Louisvdrsity in 1997.

Tom Ippolito (48), VP of Regulatory Affairs, QA and QC. Mr. Ippolifoined Chembio in June 2005. He has over twentysyeaperienc
with in vitro diagnostics for infectious diseas@sotein therapeutics, vaccine development, Pro@sgelopment, Regulatory Affairs a
Quality Management. Over the years, Mr. Ippolits hald Vice President level positions at Biospecifechnologies, Corp. from 2002605
Director level positions in Quality Assurance, QtyaControl, Process Development and Regulatoryaitdf at United Biomedical, Inc. frc
1987 - 2000. Mr. Ippolito is the Course Director fdrug development process” and “FDA Regulatorgdesss’for the BioScience Certifica
Program at the New York State University of Stompdk, a program he has been a part of since iepiian in 2003.

Dr. Gary Meller (60), Director. Dr. Meller was elected to our Board dfdators on March 15, 2005, and currently serveshenCompany
Audit, Compensation and Nominating and CorporatedBrance Committees, including as Chairman of then@nsation Committee. |
Meller also served as Chairman of the Board of @mes’ Special Committee for handling certain strategiparfunities. Dr. Meller has be
the president of CommSense Inc., a healthcare éssidevelopment company, since 2001. CommSensavamks with clients in Europ
Asia, North America, and the Middle East on medicdbrmation technology, medical records, pharmécal product development a
financing, health services operations and stratagy, new product and new market development. Ft889 until 2001 Dr. Meller was t
executive vice president, North America, of NextHd., a leading internet educational services camgpa the Asia Pacific region. Dr. Mel
also was a limited partner and a member of the gatyi Board of Crestview Capital Master LLC, whichswour largest stockholder. Dr. Me
is a graduate of the University of New Mexico SdhafaViedicine and has an MBA from the Harvard Besis School. Dr. Melles’experienc
in the medical field both domestic and foreign €xsally his experience with CommSense Inc.) as aghis financing experience made hir
excellent candidate for serving on the board.
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Kathy Davis (54), Director. Ms. Davis was elected to the Compargbard of Directors in May 2007, and currentlyvesron the Board
Director's Audit, Compensation and Nominating And Corpor&evernance Committees, including as Chairman oh eafcthe Audi
Committee and the Nominating And Corporate Govecadommittee. Ms. Davis also served on the Bogggcial Committee for handli
certain strategic opportunities. Since January7208s. Davis has been the owner of Davis Desighu@rbLC, a company that provic
analytical and visual tools for public policy desigPreviously, from February 2005 to December 260 served as the Chief Execu
Officer of Global Access Point, a stag company with products for data transport, datzcgssing, and data storage network and
facilities. From October 2003 to January 2005, Mavis was Lieutenant Governor of the State ofdndi and from January 2000 to Octc
2003 was Controller of the City of Indianapolisrofn 1989 to 2003, Ms. Davis held leadership pos#tiwith agencies and programs in
State of Indiana including State Budget Directoecr@tary of Family & Social Services Administratioand Deputy Commissioner
Transportation. From 1982 to 1989 Ms. Davis heldréasingly senior positions with Cummins Engineerehshe managed purchas
manufacturing, engineering, and assembly of ceiaigine product lines. Ms. Davis also led thetgpaof and initial investments by a §
million Indiana state technology fund, serves oa tot-forprofit boards of Noble of Indiana, University of &sville Institute of Glob.
Enterprise, Purdue College of Science Dean’s LehieiCouncil and Indiana University School of Paldind Environmental Affairs Dean’
Advisory Council. She has a Masters of Business idination from Harvard Business School and a Bémhof Science in Mechanic
Engineering from the Massachusetts Institute ohfietogy. Ms. Davis has varied experience in bussnpolitical and financial areas made
an excellent candidate for serving on the board.

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compdinces

Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of412% amended (the “Exchange Act”), requires the@my’s directors, executive office
and beneficial owners of more than 10% of the Camifsacommon stock to file with the Securities and e Commission initial reports
ownership and reports of changes in ownership ofroon stock and other equity securities of the Comipahe Company believes that dul
the year ended December 31, 2010, each person ab@amvofficer, director and beneficial owner of extiran 10% of the Comparsytommo
stock complied with all Section 16(a) filing recgrinents, except for the following) One Form 4 for Gary Meller filed on May 18, ZDtha
covered one report and one transaction and one Bbtinfiled on December 20, 2010 covering one repdgth one transaction that were
reported on a timely basis; (ii) one Form 4 for ltemce Siebert filed on December 21, 2010 that al/ene report and two transactions;
one Form 4 for Javan Esfandiari filed on March 2810 that covered one report and one transactimh{ia) one Form 4 for Katherine Da
that covered one report and two transactions.

Code of Ethics
The Company has adopted a code of ethics thatespgiits principal executive officer, principahdincial officer, principal accounting offic
controller, and persons performing similar funciorA copy of the Company’s code of ethics is aldéd on the Company'website :
www.chembio.com.

Identification of Audit Committee; Audit Committee Financial Expert
The Companys board of directors has established an audit ctieeni Katherine L. Davis and Dr. Gary Meller easdrves on the au

committee, with Ms. Davis serving as chairman. Twmpanys board of directors has determined that Ms. Davian audit committe
financial expert and is independent.
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ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The following table summarizes all compensatiororded by the Company in each of the last two cotegdldiscal years for our princig
executive officer and our two most highly compeadatxecutive officers other than our principal exee officer whose annual compensa
exceeded $100,000.

All Other
Option Stock Compensatior
Name /Principal Salary 1 Bonus? Awards 3 Awards 5 Total
Position Year ($) ($) $ $ $ $
Lawrence A. Siebert* 2010 $ 265,000 $ 99,37t $ - $ - $ 7,20C $ 371,57
CEO 2009 265,00( 110,20( 37,95( - 7,20( 420,35(
Javan Esfandiari 2010 $ 230,19 $ 80,85( $ 66,03( $ - $ 480 $  381,87:
VP-R&D 2009 230,19: 29,40( 28,20( 5,00( 4,88: 297,67
Tom Ippolito 2010 $ 185,81 $ 42,65t $ - 3 - 8 - $ 228,471
VP-Regulatory 2009 181,50( 35,60( 21,15( - 14C 238,39(

1 Salary is total base salary.

2 Bonuses earned in 2010 and 2009 were partiafigdan reaching certain objectives, which includa@nue dollar levels and operating
profit levels, additional amounts earned were dionary.

3 The estimated fair value of any option or commatmtk granted was determined in accordance with ABX; "Share-Based Payment".

4 Mr. Siebert also serves as a director on the @oryip board of directors. Mr. Siebert does not recaiwe compensation for this director rc
5 Other compensation includes an employer matdi®14K) contributions and car allowances where ajajplie.

Employment Agreements

Mr. Siebert. Effective May 11, 2009, the Company’s Board ofdators approved the Compasyextension of the June 15, 2006 employi
agreement (the “Employment Agreement”) with Lawrerdc Siebert, the Compars/President and Chief Executive Officer, for anitoldal
threeyear term through May 11, 2012. On June 15, 2006,Siebert and the Company entered into an EmpéotnfAgreement, effecti
May 10, 2006, which was to terminate on May 10, &0éxtended in 2008 to May 10, 2009. PursuanhéoBmployment Agreement, N
Siebert serves as the President and Chief ExecQfifiger of the Company and received an initiabsglof $240,000 per year, which had t
increased to $265,000 per year until Mr. Siebereag to a 15 percent reduction, to $225,000, effectanuary 19, 2009. Mr. Siebersalar
was restored to $265,000 per annum effective ip 2009. Mr. Siebert also is eligible for a bondisip to 50% of his salary, consisting of (
bonus of up to 25% of his salary that is at the glete discretion and determination of the boardlioéctors, and (ii) a bonus of up to
additional 25% of his salary that will be deterndrgsed upon revenue and earnings performanceagablished each year by the boal
directors. Mr. Siebert is eligible to participateany profit sharing, stock option, retirementrplanedical and/or hospitalization plan, an
other benefit plans except for disability and liisurance that the Company may from time to tinee@lin effect for the Comparsyexecutive
during the term of Mr. Siebert’'s employment agreeiméf Mr. Sieberts Employment Agreement is terminated by the Comprittyout caust
or if Mr. Siebert terminates his Employment Agreaif®r a reasonable basis, as defined in the Empdoy Agreement, including within
months of a change in control, the Company is reguio pay as severance Mr. Sietsergalary for six months. Mr. Siebert has agreed
period of two years after the termination of hispbmgment with the Company not to induce customagents, or other sources of distribu
of the Companys business under contract or doing business wéhCibmpany to terminate, reduce, alter, or divesirmss with or from tt
Company. The terms of the extended May 11, 20@9May 11, 2008 Employment Agreements are identw#he June 15, 2006 Employm
Agreement, except that under the May 11, 2008 ee@Employment Agreement, Mr. Siebert receivedtafdil consideration in the form
incentive stock options to purchase 250,000 shafrése Companys common stock exercisable at $0.13 per share hwinés the closing pri
of the Company's common stock on June 3, 2008. indentive stock options are immediately exercisaid they expire on the June 3, 2013.

Mr. Esfandiari. The Company entered into an employment agreematgd March 4, 2010, and to be effective March G102 (the
"Employment Agreement"), with Mr. Esfandiari to t¢imme as the Company's Senior Vice President oe&ebd andDevelopment for &
additional term of three years through May 5, 2008. Esfandiari's salary under the Employment Agnent is $245,000 for the first ye
$255,000 for the seconear, and $265,000 for the final year. Mr. Esfands eligible for a cash bonus of up to 50% af base salary for ec
respective year, consisting of (i) a cash bonuspofo 30% of his calendar year base salary basdtleoperformance of the Company's [
Path Platform Technology, which is directly relatedcertain annual revenue targets budgeted by geanent of the Company; (ii) a ci
bonus of up to 10% of his calendar year base sdlaped on the attainment of certain specific reseand development objectives,
determined by the Board, and (iii) a cash bonugpafo 10% of his calendar year base salary thattise complete discretion and determine
of the board of directors. The Company also g@r¥r. Esfandiari, pursuant to the Company's 20@®ISIncentive Planincentive stoc
options to purchase 300,000 shares of the Compeogisnon stock. The price per share of these opi®agual to the fair market value of
Company's common stock as of the close of the mankeMarch 5, 2010, which is the date on which Alggeement was effective. Of the
stock options, options to purchase 100,000 shagstson the effective date, options to purchasedditianal 100,000 shares of the stock opt
vest on the second anniversary of the Employmemeémgent, and options to purchase an additionaDD0Gshares of the stock options ves
the third anniversary of the Employment Agreemevit. Esfandiari is eligible to participate in angofit sharing, stock option, retirement pl
medical and/or hospitalization plan, and/or othemdfit plans except for disability and life insucarthat the Company may from time to t
place in effect for the Company’s executives durihg term of Mr. Esfandiari's employment agreemdhtMr. Esfandiaris employmer
agreement is terminated by the Company withouteaoisif Mr. Esfandiari terminates his employmegteement for a reasonable basis
defined in the Employment Agreement, including with2 months of a change in control, the Compamedpiired to pay as severance
Esfandiar' s salary for twelve month



35




Mr. Ippolito does not have an employment contraith the Company.
Executive Bonus Plan

The Company has established a bonus plan for ésutives who do not have a contract. For the lfigear ended December 31, 2010, there
were three executives eligible for this bonus pl&ach executive can earn up to 25% of that exeggtsalary in the form of a bonus. The
Compensation Committee determined that 40% of xeewive’s bonus will be quantitative factors, based orbtiggget. 60% will be based
other factors; with one-half of the 60% (or 30%3&@d on management objectives, and the other ofeftthle 60% (or 30%) will be
discretionary. The plan, during 2010 for the 4@%iled for a sliding percentage of the executigalkary, from zero to 5% for attaining 85% to
100% of revenue goals, and from zero to 5% of #ezetive’s salary for attaining between zero perteri50% of the designated operating
profit goals. The Company achieved 93% of its nesegoals for 2010, resulting in a bonus of 2.76aufh executive’s salary, and achieved
greater than 95% of its operating profit goal, hsg in a bonus of 2.25% of salary, for a totab8b of salary. In addition, the Compensation
Committee approved 7.5% of salary in discretior@myuses for the subject executives and 7.5% in geanant objectives, bringing the total
plan bonus to approximately 20% of salary. In @ddj outside of the plan, the compensation conemittwarded an additional 2.75% in
bonuses in recognition outstanding overall effartd accomplishments, making the total bonus fo028fual to 22.75% of base pay. Goal:
2011 have not yet been established.

OUTSTANDING EQUITY AWARDS AT FISCAL YEAR -END 2010

Option Awards Stock Awards
Name Number of Number of
Securities Securities Market
Underlying Underlying Number of  Value of
Unexcercised Unexcercised Shares of  Shares of
Options Options Option Option Stock That Stock That
Excerciseable Unexcersable Exercise  Expiration Option Have Not  Have Not Foot-
(#) (#) Price ($) Date Vesting Date Vested (#) Vested ($) note
Lawrence A. 133,33 0.1 5/6/201¢ 5/6/201: 5
Siebert
133,33 0.1 5/6/201« 5/7/201: 5
133,33 0.1 5/6/201¢ 5/6/201( 5
250,00 0.1 6/3/201: 6/3/200¢ 3
75,00 0.2  2/15/201:  2/15/200¢ 2
50,00 0.1  5/28/201. 1/1/200° 1,4
50,00 0.1  5/28/201:  4/17/200t¢ 1,4
10,00 0.1 5/4/201:  4/17/200t 4
50,00 0.1 5/4/201: 5/5/200: 4
Javan Esfandiari 100,00 0.1 5/6/201¢ 5/6/201: 5
100,00 0.1 5/6/201« 5/7/201: 5
100,00 0.1 5/6/201¢ 5/6/201( 5
100,00t 0.1  4/23/201: 3/5/200¢ 1,4
100,00 0.1  4/23/201: 3/5/200¢ 1,4
60,00 0.2 2/15/201:  2/15/200i 2
25,00 0.1  5/28/201.  5/28/200° 4
100,00 0.1  4/23/201:  4/23/200° 1,4
18,75 0.1  3/24/201: 1/1/200° 4
25,00 0.1  5/17/201( 1/1/200° 4
25,00 0.1  5/28/201:  4/17/200t 1,4
25,00 0.1  5/28/201.  4/17/200¢ 1,4
5,00 0.1 5/4/201.  4/17/200¢ 4
25,00 0.1  5/17/201(  4/17/200¢ 4
18,75 0.1  3/24/201.  3/24/200¢ 4
30,00 0.1 5/4/201: 5/5/200: 4
Tom Ippolito 75,00 0.1 5/6/201¢ 5/6/201: 5
75,00 0.1 5/6/201¢ 5/7/201: 5
75,001 0.1 5/6/201« 5/6/201( 5
50,00 0.2  2/15/201  2/15/200¢ 2
15,00 0.1  3/24/201.  3/24/200¢ 4

1 Stock issued in connection with an employment amttand under the 1999 Stock Option Plan.

2 On February 15, 2008 the Company granted optiodsutie 1999 Stock Option Plan.

3 Options issued in connection with an employmentram and under the 2008 Stock Incentive Plan.

4 0On May 7, 2009, the Compensation Committee of then@any reduced, to $0.13 per share, the exercise pf each outstanding employee option that waiseid under the 1999 Equity Incentive |
(the “1999 Plan”) for which the exercise price vgasater than $0.44 per share of the Compangmmon stock. There was no other change maithe terms of the stock options other than the rediudn
the exercise price. A total of 1,036,76ptions were affected and the fair value different¢he options before and after the reduction $8%,660 and was expensed in the three months ehdex 3(
2009.

50n May 7, 2009 in accordance with the terms ofGloenpanys 2008 Stock Incentive Plan, the Company grante@dioeemployees of the Company, options to purclaseggregate of 2,925,000 sh.
of the Companys common stock. The exercise price for these pgtis equal to $0.13 per share. The options beamecisable in thirds on the first, second anddthinniversaries of the date of
grant. Each option granted will expire and terrténaf not exercised sooner, upon the earlier touoof (a) 30 days after termination of the empkgeemployment with the Company or (b) the !
anniversary of the date of grant. The fair valfithese options is being amortized over the vedtfegf the options.
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DIRECTOR COMPENSATION

Fees Earned or Paic Option Awards Total
Name in Cash ($)! ($)2 ($)
Katherine L. Davis $ 69,50( $ - $ 69,50(
Gary Meller 86,50( $ - 86,50(

1 Fees earned or paid in cash represents a yeargnfbéees for meeting expenses: (a) Ms. Davis vedean $18,000 annual fee as a
member of the board of directors, a $2,500 anrerlals audit committee chairman, $40,000 as a meofilzespecial committee and
$9,000 in meeting fees paid during 2010; (b) Mrlistereceived an $18,000 annual fee as a membivedboard of directors, $60,000
as a member of a special committee and $9,000 étingefees.

2 Each outside member of the board of directors @ntgd, once every five years, the right to purchzig® 000 shares of the
company’s common stock with an exercise price egutie market price on the date of the grant asgigheir annual compensation.
One-fifth of these options are exercisable on thte @f grant, one-fifth become exercisable on itst &nniversary of the date of grant,
and additional one-fifths become exercisable orseond through fourth anniversary of the daterahy The fair value of options at
the date of grant was estimated using the Blacle®stoption pricing model.

Director Compensation

All non-employee directors are paid an $18,000 ahnetainer in semannual payments, and once every five years, omdte of the annu
meeting of stockholders that directors are eleotereelected (every 5 years), receive stock optionsctuiae, subject to vesting as descri
below, 375,000 shares of the Company's common stathk an exercise price equal to the market poicghe date of the grant. Stock opti
to acquire 75,000 shares become exercisable odatieeof grant, and options to acquire an additig®ad00 shares become exercisable o
date of each of the four succeeding annual meetihgsockholders if and to the extent that the eomployee director is reelected as a dire
at each such annual meeting. The audit committe@roan is paid an annual retainer of $2,500, aithi-annually. In addition, the non-
employee directors are paid $1,000 in cash for dmerd of directors' meeting attended, and paidd$B0cash for each telephonic boart
directors meeting. The namployee directors who are members of a commitfeneo board of directors are paid $500 in cashédact
committee meeting attended, or $750 in cash forh eemmmittee meeting attended if that remployee director is the commit
chairman. Directors also may be paid for serviddhac committees of the Board. In fact, when tlbard established its Special Committe
2010 to handle the possible sale of the CompamryCtimirman of the Committee was paid $12,000 pertim@nd the other directonember c
the Committee was paid $8,000 per month.

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Parttipation
No executive officer of the Company served as a bemf the Board of any other public company dutimg year ended December 31, 2
No member of the Compensation Committee serves &xecutive officer of any other public companyidgrthe year ended December

2010. No interlocking relationship exists betwela members of our Compensation Committee and tlaedBor compensation committee
any other company.
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ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The following table sets forth certain informatiggarding the beneficial ownership of our commatistoy each person or entity known by
to be the beneficial owner of more than 5% of thestanding shares of common stock, each of ouctdire and each of ounamed executi
officers” and all of our directors and executivéiadrs as a group as of March, 2011.

Amount and
Nature of
Name and Address o Beneficial
Beneficial Owner Owner Percent of Clas

Siebert, Lawrenc 1)

3661 Horseblock Road

Medford, NY 11762 6,871,71! 10.93%
Esfandiari, Java @

3661 Horseblock Road

Medford, NY 11762 977,57 1.55%
Larkin, Richard ®

3661 Horseblock Road

Medford, NY 11762 359,33¢ 0.58%
Ippolito, Tom

3661 Horseblock Road

Medford, NY 11767 140,00( 0.22%
Bruce, Richard ©)

3661 Horseblock Road

Medford, NY 11762 210,07* 0.34%
Meller, Gary(®)

3661 Horseblock Road

Medford, NY 11762 598,00( 0.96%

Davis, Katherine L. ()
3661 Horseblock Road
Medford, NY 11762 238,36l 0.38%

GROUP ®) 9,395,06° 14.58%

Alere, Inc.

51 Sawyer Road, Suite 200

Waltham, MA 0245: 5,367,84( 8.62%
Crestview Capital Offshor

Fund, Inc.

95 Revere Drive, Suite A

Northbrook, IL 60062 3,177,95( 5.11%

Beneficial ownership is determined in accordancth he Rule 138(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, asrated, and genera
includes voting or investment power with respecséaurities. Except as subject to community prgpkws, where applicable, the per
named above has sole voting and investment povterregpect to all shares of our common stock shasvipeneficially owned by him.

The beneficial ownership percent in the table iswated with respect to the number of outstandihgres (62,240,483) of the Compa
common stock outstanding as of Marth 2011. Each stockholder's ownership is calculatethe number of shares of common stock o
plus the number of shares of common stock into klasioy preferred stock, warrants, options or ottmvertible securities owned by t
stockholder can be converted within 60 days.

The term “named executive officeréfers to our principal executive officer, our twmst highly compensated executive officers othantthe
principal executive officer who were serving as@aiee officers at the end of 2010, and two addgidindividuals for whom disclosure wol
have been provided but for the fact that the irtiligis were not serving as executive officers ofGbenpany at the end of 2010.
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(1) Includes 618,333 shares issuable upon exercisptafng exercisable within 60 days.
exercise of options that are not exercisable withennext 60 day:

(2) Includes 707,500 shares issuable upon exercisptafns exercisable within 60 days.
exercise of options that are not exercisable withennext 60 day:

(3) Includes 204,166 shares issuable upon exercisetafns exercisable within 60 days.
exercise of options that are not exercisable withennext 60 day:

(4) Includes 140,000 shares issuable upon exercisptafng exercisable within 60 days.
exercise of options that are not exercisable withennext 60 day:

(5 Includes 185,000 shares issuable upon exercisetafng exercisable within 60 days.
exercise of options that are not exercisable withennext 60 day:

(6) Includes 198,000 shares issuable upon exercisetafns exercisable within 60 days.
exercise of options that are not exercisable witheanext 60 day:

(7) Includes 150,650 shares issuable upon exercisptafns exercisable within 60 days.
exercise of options that are not exercisable withennext 60 day:

(8) Includes footnotes (-(8)

Equity Compensation Plan Information

Does not inel@2é6,667 shares issuable u
Does not ineld@0,000 shares issuable u
Does not ineldd3,334 shares issuable u
Does not ineldd0,000 shares issuable u
Does not ineldd0,000 shares issuable u
Does not inel380,000 shares issuable u

Does not incl@86,000 shares issuable u

Combined Equity Compensation Plé Information as of December 31, 20
Number of Securities
Remaining Available for

Future Issuance under
Equity Compensation
Plans (Excluding
Securities Reflected in

Number of Securitie
to be Issued Upon Weighte«-Average
Exercise of Exercise Price of
Outstanding Option: Outstanding Option:

Plan Categor  Warrants and Right Warrants and Right Column (a)
, _ @ (b) (©)
Equity compensatio
plans approved by
security holder! 5,530,56€&1 $0.156 1,571,35(C
Equity compensatio
plans not approved !
security holder: - - --
Total 5,530,56¢ $0.156 1,571,35(C

1 The “Number of Securities to be Issued Upon Egerof Outstanding Warrants and Rights” repres2ri80,250 from th&999 Stock Optic
Plan and 3,400,318 under the 2008 Stock Incentiga. PThe Number of Securities Remaining Available for Futissuance Under Equ
Compensation Plans” represents shares issuable tned2008 Stock Incentive Plan.
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ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE.

The executive officers of the Company are as fadlolawrence A. Siebert, president and chairmamefttoard of directors of the Compe
Richard J. Larkin, chief financial officer of theo@pany, and Javan Esfandiari, executive vice peesidf Research and Development ol
Company.

On May 7, 2009, the Compensation Committee of tben@any reduced, to $0.13 per share, the exercise pf each outstanding emplo
option that was issued under the 1999 Equity Ineerilan (the “1999 Plan'for which the exercise price was greater than $perdshare «
the Companys common stock. There was no other change maite tierms of the stock options other than the riéoluén the exercise pric
A total of 1,036,750 options were affected. Mrel&irt, Mr. Esfandiari and Mr. Larkin had optionsptarchase common stock that wert
reduced of 160,000, 497,500 and 137,500, resmdgtiv

In addition, on May 7, 2009 in accordance with tivens of the Compang’2008 Stock Incentive Plan, the Company grantetdioeemployee
of the Company, options to purchase an aggrega?e9@b,000 shares of the Compangbmmon stock. The exercise price for these pgtis
equal to $0.13 per share. The options become ieréte in thirds on the first, second and thirdiearsaries of the date of the grant. E
option granted will expire and terminate, if noeesised sooner, upon the earlier to occur of (aji&@s after termination of the employee’
employment with the Company or (b) the fifth anmgagy of the date of grant. Mr. Siebert, Mr. Esfiani and Mr. Larkin received options
purchase common stock of 400,000, 300,000 and)Q@5respectively.

During the quarter ended December 31, 2008, Aletiied the Company that Alere had entered into@matract with BioRad Laboratories, In
(“Bio-Rad”) for royalties on Bio-Rad’s patent fohe detection of HIV2 antibodies. The agreement also provided for éAler pay pa
royalties. On June 25, 2009, the Company and Adettered into a letter agreement whereby certaligations aggregating approximat
$1,010,000 as of December 31, 2008 were agreee tpaldl from future revenues. The obligations ideldthe Companyg share under

agreements with Alere for the amount of HIV-2 rdiga that Alere paid when Alere entered into an +2I\icense agreement with Bieac
Laboratories, Inc. of approximately $485,000 anghtiles owed by Chembio on lateral flow licenseg\tere of approximately $525,000 as
December 31, 2008. Under the agreement Alere wilin an additional 10% of Clearview® HIV 1/2 STARK® net sales and 5%
Clearview® Complete HIV 1/2 net sales until thebégations are extinguished. As of December &1,Rthis balance was fully paid.

Director Independence

Our common stock trades on the OTC Bulletin Boakd. such, we are not currently subject to corpogdgernance standards of lis
companies, which require, among other things, ttr&tmnajority of the board of directors be indepernde

We are not currently subject to corporate goveraastandards defining the independence of our direcand we have chosen to defint
“independent’director in accordance with the NASDAQ Global Matkeequirements for independent directors. Utldisrdefinition, we hav
determined that Gary Meller and Katherine L. Daisrently qualify as independent directors. Wendo list the “independentiefinition we
use on our internet website .
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ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

All fees discussed below were paid to ParenteBeh€l

Audit Fees

For the years ended December 31, 2010 and 200€,dimpany’s independent accounting firm billed tlmrpany $154,620 and $160,000,
respectively, for fees for the audit of the Compamnnual financial statements and review of finahgtatements included in the Company’s
Forms 10-Q and 10-K.

Audit-Related Fees

For the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2008hdbpendent accounting firm, did not provide tlepany with any assurance and rel
services reasonably related to the performancéefitidit or review of the Compasyfinancial statements that are not reported albowk
“Audit Fees.”

Tax Fees

For the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009 dkependent accounting firm billed the Company4$9,and $20,000, respectively,
professional services for tax compliance, tax agleind tax planning.

All Other Fees

For the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009 dkeendent accounting firm billed the Company,$28 and none for fees associi
with the preparation and filing of the Company’gistration statements, responses to SEC commeeitdetnd other related matters.

Audit Committee Pre-Approval Policies

The Audit Committee approves in advance all audit aonaudit services performed by the independent acauyfirm. There are no oth
specific policies or procedures relating to the-gpproval of services performed by the independeabunting firm.
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ITEM 15.

Description

Number

3.1 Articles of Incorporation, as amended.

3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws.

4.1 Form of Common Stock Warrant issued pursuant tad#@meiary 26, 2005 Securities Purchase Agreemer

4.2 Amended Form of Common Stock Warrant issued putdoahe January 26, 2005 Securities Purchase Agget (8)

4.3 Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of Jan2ér2005, by and among the Registrant and the paech listed therein. (

4.4 Form of Warrant, dated June 29, 2006, issued potgaaCompany and purchasers of the Com’s Secured Debentures.

45 Registration Rights Agreement, dated June 29, 2(X)!

4.6 Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of Septe@®e2006, by and among the Registrant and thehasers listed therei
5)

4.7 Form of Common Stock Warrant issued pursuant tésgmurities Purchase Agreements dated Septemb20@6,(5).

4.8 Amended Form of Common Stock Warrant issued putdoahe Securities Purchase Agreements dated &ctt2006. (5

4.9 Amended Form of Common Stock Warrant issued todptent Agents pursuant to the October 5, 2005 SezuRurchase
Agreement. (8

4.10*  Form of Employee Option Agreement.

4.11 1999 Equity Incentive Plan. (!

412 2008 Stock Incentive Plan. (1

4.21 Rights Agreement, dated March 8, 2010 (

4.22 Form of Warrant (to be filed by amendme

10.1*  Employment Agreement dated June 15, 2006 with Laege\. Siebert. (4

10.2*  Employment Agreement dated March 5, 2010 with J&asfandiari. (12

10.3 Securities Purchase Agreement (the “SecuritiesHisee Agreement”), dated as of January 26, 2008ndyamong the
Registrant and the purchasers listed thereir

10.4 Amendment No. 1 to Securities Purchase Agreemaiteddas of January 28, 2005 by and among the Ragiistind the
purchasers listed therein. {

10.5 Security Purchase Agreement, dated June 29, 2@t@h@the Company and purchasers of the Con’s Securet
Debentures. (3

10.6 Securities Purchase Agreement (“Securities Purchase Agreen™), dated as of September 29, 2006, by and amon
Registrant and the Purchasers listed thereir

10.7 Securities Purchase Agreement (the “Securitiestasee Agreement”), dated as of September 29, 2§0&nd among the
Registrant and the Purchasers listed thereir

10.8 Letter of Amendment to Securities Purchase Agree¢smigited as of September 29, 2006 by and amorigefistrant and the
Purchasers listed therein. |

10.9 HIV Barrel License, Marketing and Distribution Agraent, dated as of September 29, 2006, by and atherigegistran
Alere and StatSure. (!

10.1 HIV Cassette License, Marketing and Distributionrégment, dated as of September 29, 2006, betwedRebistrant and
Alere. (5)

10.11  Non-Exclusive License, Marketing and Distribution Agneent, dated as of September 29, 2006, betwedRetjistrant and
Alere. (5)

10.12  Joint HIV Barrel Product Commercialization Agreemetated as of September 29, 2006, between thestRagfi and StatSur
(5)

10.13  Secured Term Note, dated as of June 14, 2010, damong the Registrant, Chembio Diagnostics Systerasand HSB(
Bank, NA (13)

10.14  Secured Revolving Demand Note, dated as of Jun2Qlid), by and among the Registrant, Chembio DiagsoSystems, Inc.
and HSBC Bank, NA (13

10.15 Loan and Security Agreement, dated as of June@¥),2y and among the Registrant, Chembio Diagee8lystems, Inc. ai
HSBC Bank, NA (13

14.1 Ethics Policy (14

21 List of Subsidiarie:

23.1 Consent of ParenteBeard LLC, Independent Accousit

31.1 Certification of the Chief Executive Officer pursuido Section 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002

31.2 Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursudo Section 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002

32 Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chieihancial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section@38S adopted pursuant

EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

Section 906 of the Sarbal-Oxley Act of 2002

1 Incorporated by reference to the Regisf's registration statement on Form-2 (File No. 33-85787) filed with the
Commission on August 23, 1999 and the Registr&otms 8-K filed on May 14, 2004, December 20, 280d April 18,
2008.

2 Incorporated by reference to the Regisf's annual report on Form -KSB filed with the Commission on March 31, 20i

3 Incorporated by reference to the Regisf's Current Report on Forn-K filed with the Commission on July 3, 20(

4 Incorporated by reference to the Regist's Current Report on Forn-K filed with the Commission on June 21, 20

5 Incorporated by reference to the Regisf's Current Report on Forn-K filed with the Commission on October 5, 20

6 Incorporated by reference to the Regisf's Current Report on Forn-K filed with the Commission on January 31, 20

7 Incorporated by reference to the Regis!'s registration statement on Form-2 filed with the Commission on March Z
2005.

8 Incorporated by reference to the Regisf's annual report on Form -KSB filed with the Commission on March 12, 20



(*)

9 Incorporated by reference to the Registrant’s @afenproxy statement on Schedule 14A filed witke thommission on

May 11, 2005

10 Incorporated by reference to the Regist's definitive proxy statement on Schedule 14A fikdth the Commission on Apr
14, 2008.

11 Incorporated by reference to the Regisf's registration statement on Fort-A filed with the Commission on March 11, 20

12 Incorporated by reference to the Regisf's registration statement on Fori-1/A filed with the Commission on March 1
2010.

13 Incorporated by reference to the Regist's Quarterly Report on Form -Q filed with the Commission on July 29, 20:

14 Incorporated by reference to the Regis's annual report on Form -KSB filed with the Commission on March 30, 20
An asterisk (*) beside an exhibit number indicdtesexhibit contains a management contract, congterysplan or
arrangement which is required to be identifiechis tegistration statemer
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SIGNATURES

In accordance with Section 13 or 15(d) of the Exgw®aAct, the registrant has caused this reportetgigned on its behalf by 1
undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

CHEMBIO DIAGNOSTICS, INC.

Date: March 3, 2011 By /s/ Lawrence A. Siebert
Lawrence A. Siebert
President, Chief Executive Officer and
Chairman of the Board

In accordance with the requirements of the Exchakagdethis report has been signed below by theofaithg persons on behalf of 1
registrant and in the capacities and on the datisated.

Signature: Title Date

[s/ Lawrence A. Siebe Chief Executive Officer, President and Chairn
Of The Board March 3, 2011

Lawrence A. Siebe (Principal Executive Officer
/ s/ Richard J. Larkil Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial March 3. 2011
Richard J. Larkir Accounting Officer) '
sl Gary Mellel Director
Dr. Gary Meller el £ 2000
/sl Katherine L. Davis Director

Katherine L. Davis March 3, 2011
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To The Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Chembio Diagnostics, Inc. and Subsidiary
Medford, New York 11763

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balaheets of Chembio Diagnostics, Inc. and Subgidie “Company”)as of Decemb:
31, 2010 and 2009 and the related consolidatedrstatts of operations, stockholders' equity and 8asls for the years then ended. Tt
consolidated financial statements are the respiitbgibf the Company's management. Our responsybib to express an opinion on th
consolidated financial statements based on outsaudi

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighamloUnited States). Those stand
require that we plan and perform the audits to inbtaasonable assurance about whether the consalidmancial statements are free
material misstatement. The Company is not requioedave, nor were we engaged to perform, an addis internal control over financ
reporting. Our audits included consideration dkinal control over financial reporting as a bdsis designing audit procedures that
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for theppse of expressing an opinion on the effectiverdthe Company's internal control ¢
financial reporting. Accordingly, we express nalswpinion. An audit also includes examining, oneat basis, evidence supporting
amounts and disclosures in the consolidated fimdrstatements, assessing the accounting princied and significant estimates mads
management, as well as evaluating the overall Gigdrstatement presentation. We believe that adlits provide a reasonable basis for
opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referre@bove present fairly, in all material respedts, tonsolidated financial position of Cherr

Diagnostics, Inc. and Subsidiary as of Decembe2810 and 2009, and the consolidated results af tiperations and their cash flows for
years then ended in conformity with accounting gipfes generally accepted in the United Statesro&Aca.

PARENTEBEARD LLC

/sl PARENTEBEARD LLC

New York, New York
March 3, 2011
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CHEMBIO DIAGNOSTICS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

AS OF
- ASSETS-
December 31, 2011  December 31, 200

CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivale $ 2,136,35. $ 1,068,23!
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doub#fttounts of $35,000 and

$20,000 for 2010 and 2009, respectiv 3,946,39 1,776,32
Inventories 1,349,16. 1,555,90:
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 204,82 266,63’
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 7,636,73. 4,667,10:;
FIXED ASSETS, net of accumulated depreciati 813,21 580,211
OTHER ASSETS:
License agreements, net of current por 600,00( 700,00(
Deposits on manufacturing equipm - 338,37!
Deposits and other assets 36,22¢ 29,56(
TOTAL ASSETS $ 9,086,17. $ 6,315,25!

- LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS ' EQUITY -

CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilit $ 2,055,94. $ 1,906,16:
Current portion of loans payak 55,81% 9,60(
Deferred research and development reve 65,00( 360,83:
License fee payab 875,00( 875,00(
Current portion of obligations under capital leases 24,69° 21,53¢
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 3,076,45 3,173,13
OTHER LIABILITIES:
Loans payabl- net of current portio 186,19 14,93
Obligations under capital leases - net of curremtipn 14,57¢ 39,27
TOTAL LIABILITIES 3,277,23 3,227,33
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY:
Preferred stoc— 10,000,000 shares authorized, none outstar - -
Common stocl- $.01 par value; 100,000,000 shares authorized, 6883&nc

61,979,901 shares issued and outstanding for 204 @@09, respectivel 622,39( 619,79¢
Additional paic-in capital 39,658,61 39,453,52
Accumulated defici (34,472,06) (36,985,40)
TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS ' EQUITY 5,808,94. 3,087,91.
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY $ 9,086,17. $ 6,315,25!

See accompanying notes to consolidated financiatesments
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CHEMBIO DIAGNOSTICS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED

REVENUES:

Net product sale

License and royalty reveni

R&D, milestone and grant reven
TOTAL REVENUES

Cost of product sales

GROSS MARGIN

OPERATING EXPENSES:

Research and development exper
Selling, general and administrative expenses

INCOME FROM OPERATIONS

OTHER INCOME (EXPENSES):
Other expens

Interest incom:

Interest expense

INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES

Provision for income taxe

NET INCOME

Basic earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share

Weighted average number of shares outstanding, bas

Weighted average number of shares outstanding, dited

December 31, 201

December 31, 200

$ 13,516,35 $ 12,372,49
432,23t 121,89

2,756,101 1,339,85!

16,704, 70 13,834,24
8,604,00. 7,973,84:

8,100,69! 5,860,40!

2,586,30: 2,883,609

2,940,72: 2,659,38;

5,527,02! 5,543,07;

2,573,67! 317,32,

(3,929) (6,696)

4,147 9,03:

(14,72) (10,609

(14,507) (8,267)

2,559,16 309,06

45,82 -

$ 2513,34 $ 309,06
$ 0.0/ $ 0.0¢
$ 0.04 $ 0.0C
62,102,86 61,946,43
70,920,91 75,041,93

See accompanying notes to consolidated financiatesments
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CHEMBIO DIAGNOSTICS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS ’* EQUITY

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 200¢

Balance at December 31, 20C
Warrants and options:
Excercisec

Stock option compensatic

Net income

Balance at December 31, 20C
Warrants and options:
Excercisec

Stock option compensatic

Net income

Balance at December 31, 201

Additional
Paid in Accumulated
Common Stock Capital Deficit Total
Shares Amount Amount Amount Amount
61,94490 $ 619,44¢ $ 39,252,35 $ (37,294,46) $ 2,577,33.
35,00( 35C 4,20( - 4,55(
- - 196,97 - 196,97
- - - 309,06( 309,06(
61,979,900 $ 619,79¢ $ 39,45352 $ (36,985,40) $ 3,087,91.
259,08: 2,591 35,02( 37,611
170,07! 170,07*
2,513,34. 2,513,34
62,238,98 $ 622,39( $ 39,658,61 $ (34,472,06) $ 5,808,94.

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@ée sient:




CHEMBIO DIAGNOSTICS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED

December 31, 2011 December 31, 200

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS:

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Cash received from custome $ 14,534,63 $ 12,871,92
Cash paid to suppliers and employ (13,507,20) (12,618,42)
Interest receive 4,14 9,03z
Interest paic (14,727 (10,609
Net cash provided by operating activities 1,016,85I 251,92°
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from sale of fixed ass - 13,75(
Acquisition of fixed assets (182,297 (390,739
Net cash used in investing activitie (182,297) (376,989
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from option exercis 37,61 -
Proceeds from loa 250,00( 4,55(
Payment of loan obligatic (32,51 (4,697
Payment of capital lease obligati (21,53¢) (18,779
Net cash provided by financing activities 233,55¢ (18,926
INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 1,068,111 (143,98)
Cash and cash equivaler- beginning of the perio 1,068,23! 1,212,22.
Cash and cash equivalent- end of the period $ 2,136,35. $ 1,068,23!
RECONCILIATION OF NET INCOME TO NET CASH PROVIDED B Y
OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income $ 2,513,34. $ 309,06(
Adjustments
Depreciation and amortizatic 283,74 362,33t
Provision for doubtful account 15,00( 9,69¢
Loss on retirement/sale of fixed as 3,92: 6,69¢
Share based compensat 170,07¢ 198,22(
Changes in assets and liabiliti
Accounts receivabl (2,185,07) (976,72)
Inventories 206,74. 263,13«
Prepaid expenses and other current a: 61,81: (42,737)
Deposits and other assi 93,33¢ 238,26(
Accounts payable and accrued liabilit 149,78( 360,83
Deferred research and development revenue (295,83)) (476,859
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 1,016,851 $ 251,92°
Supplemental disclosures for no-cash investing and financing

activities:
Deposits on manufacturing equipment transferrdikénl asset:  $ 338,37¢ $ -
Purchase of fixed asset through a I - 29,22¢

See accompanying notes to consolidated financiatstments
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NOTE 1—

NOTE 2—

(@)

(b)

(©

(d)

(e)

CHEMBIO DIAGNOSTICS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS:

Chembio Diagnostics, Inc. (the “Company” or “Chepipiand its subsidiary, Chembio Diagnostic Systeins,,
develop, manufacture, and market rapid diagnossitstthat detect infectious diseases. The Compamgfis products
are three rapid tests for the detection of HIV lamdies in whole blood, serum and plasma samples,ofimvhich
were approved by the FDA in 2006; the third is doldexport only. Rapid HIV tests represented he80% of the
Company’s product revenues in 2010. The Compalsp &as other rapid tests that together represented
approximately 10% of sales in 2010. The Compamysducts are sold to medical laboratories and itadsp
governmental and public health entities, non-gowemmtal organizations, medical professionals andiilret
establishments both domestically and internatignallhembio’s products are sold under the CompaSfaT
PAK®, SURE CHECK® or DPP® registered trademarksuoder the private labels of its marketing partnéss
example the Clearview® label owned by Alere, Iffalére”), which is the Company’s exclusive markefipartner
for its rapid HIV lateral flow test products in thénited States. These products employ lateral teehnologies that
are proprietary and/or licensed to the Company.oAthe Company’s products that are currently beileveloped
are based on its patented Dual Path Platform (DPR®ich is a unique diagnostic point-of-care platicthat has
certain advantages over lateral flow technology2009 and 2010 to date, the Company has compdieteelopment
of its first four products that employ the DPP®dathe Company has a number of additional produnteu
development that employ the DPP®.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:
Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include #mants of the Company, and its wholly owned suasyd All
intercompany transactions and balances have baeima&ied in consolidation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statesmémtconformity with accounting principles geneyadiccepted in
the United States requires management to make asisums and estimates that affect the reported atsoefrassets
and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assetd liabilities at the dates of the consolidatedricial statements
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenseg the reporting periods covered thereby. Acteallts could
differ from these estimates. Judgments and estgsnafeuncertainties are required in applying the @any’s
accounting policies in certain areas. The followiag some of the areas requiring significant judgismeand
estimates: determinations of the useful lives clets estimates of allowances for doubtful accoants inventory
reserves.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments:

Fair values of cash and cash equivalents, accoaotivable, prepaid expenses and other currentsassd accounts
payable, short-term portion of loans and accruederges reflected in these financial statementsoajpate
carrying value as these are short-term in nature.

Statements of Cash Flow:

For purposes of the statements of cash flows thagaay considers all highly liquid investments wétimaturity of
three months or less when purchased to be cashadepiis.

Concentrations of Credit Risk

Financial instruments which potentially subject thempany to concentrations of credit risk consigtgipally of

temporary cash investments and trade receivables.Company places its temporary cash instrumertts well-

known financial institutions and, at times, may ntain balances in excess of the $250,000 FDIC &g
limit. The Company monitors the credit ratings tbé financial institutions to mitigate this riskhe Company
maintains four accounts with a well establishedtmadtional bank and as of December 31, 2010 ar@P Ztad
approximately an aggregate of $1,866,000 and $808j@spectively above the federally insured liBibncentration
of credit risk with respect to trade receivablepiigcipally mitigated by the Company’s ability tdtain letters of
credit from certain foreign customers, and its dieecustomer base both in number of customers andraphic
locations. We currently do not require collatdoalaccounts receivable.

F-7



(f)

(9)

(h)

(i)

()

(k)

CHEMBIO DIAGNOSTICS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

Inventories:

Inventories, consisting of material, labor and nfanturing overhead, are stated at the lower of oosharket. Cost
is determined on the first-in, first-out method.

Fixed Assets

Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulapeeloiition. Depreciation is computed using thaight-line method
over the estimated useful lives of the respectigsets, which range from three to seven years. ebeds
improvements are amortized over the useful lifthefasset or the lease term, whichever is shorter.

License Agreement

In February 2008, the Company entered into a seidie agreement (see Note 6) for which it had Ilyitiecorded an
asset of $1,000,000. This asset is being expemamdan estimated economic life of ten years, basethe expected
lifespan of our then current HIV products. Thereunt portion of this asset is $100,000 and is rggbin prepaid
expenses and other current assets. The long-tertiomp as of December 31, 2010 is $600,000 anefieated in

other assets.

Impairment of Lonc-Lived Assets and Intangible Asse

Long-lived assets to be held and used are analf@etnpairment whenever events or changes in cigtances
indicate that the related carrying amounts maybeotecoverable. The Company evaluates at eachdeatheet date
whether events and circumstances have occurredinbatate possible impairment. If there are intaes of
impairment, the Company uses future undiscountesth dlows of the related asset or asset grouping tive
remaining life in measuring whether the assetsreceverable. In the event such cash flows areerpécted to be
sufficient to recover the recorded asset values agsets are written down to their estimated faiwez We believe
that the carrying values of our long-lived tangibled intangible assets were realizable at Dece@bef010 and
2009, respectively.

Revenue Recognitior

The Company recognizes revenue for product saleEdordance with Securities and Exchange CommisStaff
Accounting Bulletin No. 104, “Revenue RecognitiogiSAB 104"). Under SAB 104, revenue is recognizelden
there is persuasive evidence of an arrangemertedghas occurred or services have been rendéredsales price
is determinable, and collectability is reasonaldgumed. Revenue typically is recognized at timshipment. Sales
are recorded net of discounts, rebates and returns.

For certain contracts, the Company recognizes revdrom non-milestone contracts and grant reverwiesn
earned. Grants are invoiced after expenses ater@tt Revenues from projects or grants fundeddwance are
deferred until earned.

On June 15, 2010, the Company adopted Financiabdwing Standards Board (“FASB”) issued authoniati
guidance (“guidance”) prospectively for the recdigm of revenue under the milestone method. The @om

applies the milestone method of revenue recognftiorcertain collaborative research projects defjninilestones at
the inception of the agreement.

Any projects or grants funded in advance are dedeantil earned. As of December 31, 2010 and 280%ggregate
of $65,000 and $361,000, respectively of advanegdnues was unearned.

Research and Developmer

Research and development (R&D) costs are experséatcarred. During the fourth quarter of 2010 @@mpany
was awarded $1,466,875 in Qualified Therapeutic®isry Project grants (“QTDP”) for the years 201l 2009

under Section 48D of the Internal Revenue Codenasted under the Patient Protection and Afford@lales Act of
2010. This was reflected as a reduction of R&Dtxésr the year ended December 31, 2010.
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(m)

(n)
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CHEMBIO DIAGNOSTICS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

Stock Based Compensatio

The Company’s 2008 Stock Incentive Plan and 199@kKSOption Plan (“Plans”) are accounted for in ademce
with the recognition and measurement provisions BAfIidance. The Guidance requires compensatios cektted
to share-based payment transactions, including @mpl stock options, to be recognized in the firgratatements.
In addition, the Company adheres to the guidantigé within Securities and Exchange Commissit8HC") Staff
Accounting Bulletin No. 107 ("SAB 107"), which prioles the Staff's views regarding the interactiotwken the
Guidance and certain SEC rules and regulationspaovides interpretations with respect to the vatmabf share-
based payments for public companies. See Noterlf2ifther details.

Income Taxes:

The Company accounts for income taxes under theigiloons of FASB Guidance. The deferred tax assats a
liabilities are determined based on the differebesveen the financial statement carrying amoundsthe tax bases
of assets and liabilities using enacted tax rateffect in the years in which the differencesexpected to reverse.

The Guidance also prescribes a more-likely-thantiieshold for financial statement recognition aneasurement
of a tax position taken, or expected to be takema tax return. The Guidance also provides guidaetxed to,
among other things, classification, accountingifderest and penalties associated with tax postiand disclosure
requirements. Any interest and penalties accruledectto unrecognized tax benefits will be recoritethx expense.

Earnings Per Share
The following weighted average shares were useth®computation of basic and diluted earningsspere:

For the years endec
December 31, 201 December 31, 200
Basic 62,102,86 61,946,43

Diluted 70,920,91 75,041,93

Basic loss per share is computed by dividing ns$ lattributable to common stockholders by the weifaverage
number of common shares outstanding for the pefdted earnings per share for the year ended mDbee 31,
2010 and 2009 reflects the potential dilution frtira exercise or conversion of other securities atmmon stock.
The following securities, presented on a commorresieguivalent basis, have been used in the dilpggdshare
computations:

For the years endec
December 31, 201 December 31, 200

1999 and 2008 Plan Stoc

Options 5,638,311 4,451,12!
Other Stock Options 124,62! 124,62!
Warrants 3,055,11! 8,519,74.

8,818,05. 13,095,49

Recent Accounting Pronouncements Affecting the Caang:
Revenue Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables

In October 2009, the FASB issued authoritative gnag (“guidance”) that amends existing guidancedentifying
separate deliverables in a revenue-generatingactina where multiple deliverables exist, and pdegi guidance for
allocating and recognizing revenue based on theparate deliverables. The guidance is expectedsidt in more
multiple- deliverable arrangements being separtide under current guidance. This guidance iscéfe for the
Company beginning January 1, 2011. The Compamyatuating the impact, if any this guidance mayehan its
consolidated financial statements.
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CHEMBIO DIAGNOSTICS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

Intangibles — Goodwill and Other

In December 2010, the FASB amended the existindaguge to modify Step 1 of the goodwill impairmessttfor a
reporting unit with a zero or negative carrying amio Upon adoption of the amendment, an entity \&itteporting
unit that has a carrying amount that is zero oiatieg is required to assess whether it is mordylikgan not that the
reporting unit's goodwill is impaired. If the entitletermines that it is more likely than not tha goodwill of the
reporting unit is impaired, the entity should penfioStep 2 of the goodwill impairment test for te@arting unit. Any
resulting goodwill impairment should be recordecasmulative-effect adjustment to beginning regdiearnings in
the period of adoption. Any goodwill impairmentscarring after the initial adoption of the amendmshould be
included in earnings. This guidance is effective fllke Company beginning January 1, 2011. The Compsa
currently assessing the impact, if any, this mayehan their consolidated financial statements.

Broad Transactions — Business Combination

In December 2010, the FASB amended the existindage to require a public entity, which presentsgarative
financial statements, to disclose revenue and egsrf the combined entity as though the businesthination that
occurred during the current year had occurred ahefbeginning of the comparable prior annual repgrperiod
only.

The amendment also expanded the required supplaehpntforma disclosures to include a descriptibthe nature
and amount of material, nonrecurring pro forma sifents directly attributable to the business cowion, which
are included in the reported pro forma revenue earhings. The amendments are effective for the Gomp
beginning January 1, 2011. The Company is curreatigessing the impact, if any, this may have orr the
consolidated financial statements.

NOTE 3— INVENTORIES:

Inventories consist of the following at:

December December 31

31, 2010 2009
Raw materials $ 785,69: $ 1,031,56
Work in process 235,54¢ 184,08:
Finished goods 327,92( 340,25!

$ 1349160 $ 1,555,990

NOTE 4— FIXED ASSETS:
Fixed assets consist of the following at DecemHler 3

December December 3:

31, 2010 2009

Machinery and equipmel $ 1,635461 $ 1,222,221
Furniture and fixture 207,48t 212,10t
Computer and telephone equipm 348,501 329,49:
Leasehold improvemen 482,21 400,58
Automobiles 29,22¢ 29,22¢

2,702,89 2,203,63!
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (1,889,68) (1,623,41)

$ 813,21 $ 580,21:

Included in fixed assets is $24,000 and $44,000phaccumulated depreciation of $87,000 and $65 @0assets
held under capital leases as of December 31, 20d2809, respectively. Depreciation expense lier2010 and
2009 years aggregated $283,743 and $362,338, taghec
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NOTE 5—

NOTE 6—

NOTE 7—

CHEMBIO DIAGNOSTICS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities consigheffollowing at December 31,:

December 31, 201i December 31, 200

Accounts payable- suppliers $ 883,71¢ $ 662,73¢
Accrued commissions 114,45 43,93:
Accrued royalties / license fee 352,28! 612,70¢
Accrued payroll 162,74( 114,23:
Accrued vacation 129,73: 99,057
Accrued bonuses 140,32! 238,60(
Accrued expense- other 272,69. 134,89:
TOTAL $ 2,055,94. $ 1,906,16.

DEFERRED RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT REVENUE:

In January 2009, the Company received a refundiddese fee of $340,000 from Bio-Rad Laboratories,.,
pursuant to an exclusive license of our DPP® tekdgyofor a specific field of use. The license taecome fully
earned and non-refundable based upon certain eomglibeing met in June of 2010. In addition, themPany
recognizes income from R&D milestones when thodestunes are reached and non-milestone contradtgramts
when earned. Grants are invoiced after expensemenrred. Any projects or grants funded in adease deferred
until earned. As of December 31, 2010 and 200%ggregate of $65,000 and $361,000 of advanced uegewas
unearned.

TERM NOTE, REVOLVING DEMAND NOTE, VEHICLE FINANCING  AND LICENSE FEE PAYABLE:

In June 2010, the Company entered into three agreenwith HSBC Bank, NA (“HSBC”). The three agremts
were: 1) a secured term note (“Term Note”) of $2B0, to be repaid over sixty months; 2) a securedlveng
demand note (“Demand Note”) up to $250,000; and [Bgn and security agreement (“Security Agreement”

The Term Note is payable at $4,775 of principal andrest per month in arrears. The payment wslleded by
amortizing the $250,000 note over 60 months amn&reést rate of 5.5% per annum. The Term Note reatdune,
2015 and is secured under the terms of the SedAgitgement.

The Demand Note allows the Company to draw on ithe from time to time an amount up to an aggregdte
$250,000 outstanding at any one time. The accmtedest on the Demand Note is payable monthlynainterest

rate equal to one-quarter percent above primeapeum. The Company can repay any or all of thecjréd balance

outstanding at any time. This is a demand noteigsdbject to annual reviews, as well as a 30akegn-up, during
which there can be no amounts outstanding.

The Security Agreement contains covenants thatepdamual restrictions on the Company’s assets aedations,
including covenants relating to mergers, debt ig&ins, capital expenditures, tangible net wonidt, profit, leverage,
fixed charge coverage, employee loan restrictiahstribution restrictions (common stock and preddrrstock),
dividend restrictions, restrictions on lease paytmeo affiliates, restrictions on changes in busieasset sale
restrictions, restrictions on acquisitions and ricdenpany transactions, restrictions on fundamecianges. The
Security Agreement also requires that the Compaaintain a minimum tangible net worth at all timdsgoeater
than $3,000,000 and EBITDA to CMLTD plus intereahnot be less than 1.25 to 1.00 for any fiscal y&¥LTD
is defined as any one-year period, the currentdided principal payments required to be paid fa #pplicable
period.). The Company was in compliance with edjuired financial covenants at December 31, 201@&: Security
Agreement requires that the Demand Note has anaar@@iday clean-up, during which there can be nowats
outstanding.

The Company currently maintains its operating, pliyand primary cash accounts at HSBC. The ba&ahue on the

Term Note as of December 31, 2010 was $228,000naxiding was drawn down on the Demand Note as of
December 31, 2010.
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CHEMBIO DIAGNOSTICS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

Future minimum payments under the Term Note, exatuthterest, as of December 31, 2010 were aswvistio

Periods ending December 31,

2011 $45,91:
2012 48,50
2013 51,23¢
2014 54,12¢
2015 28,12
227,89!
Less: current (45,91))
maturities
$ 181,98

In June 2009, the Company purchased a vehicle derhy the CEO and obtained financing in the amaint
$29,228. The financing is for a period of 3 yeasssecured by the vehicle and is guaranteed byCtE®. The

financing agreement provides for monthly princigatl interest payments of $849 and carries an stteage of 2.9%
per annum. The balance due on this loan as of ibleee31, 2010 was $14,119.

Future minimum payments under this obligation, edirlg interest as of December 31, 2010 were agvigt!

Year ending December 31,

2011 $9,90¢

2012 4,218

14,11¢

Less: current (9,90€)
maturities

$4,21:

In February 2008, the Company entered into a seifdie agreement (the “Agreement”), with Btad Laboratories, Inc. a
Bio-Rad Pasteur (collectively, “Bio-Rad”). Bio-Raslthe exclusive licensee of the HR/patent portfolio held by InstitL
Pasteur of Paris, France. On January 29, 2089Cthmpany and Bi®ad agreed to amend the Agreement so as to de
remaining $875,000 of payments due under the Agea¢to one payment due in December 2010 which waabsqn Janual
3, 2011. The Company will also pay BRad a royalty on net sales in the United States @adada, if any, of rapid t
immunoassay tests sold under the Compaiyands of Licensed Products as defined in thedment. The Agreement v
continue until the expiration of the last¢apire of the sublicensed patents, unless otherigiseinated at an earlier date
the Company or Bio-Rad.

NOTE 8 — OBLIGATIONS UNDER CAPITAL LEASES:
The Company is obligated under capitalized leasesdrtain manufacturing and computer equipment.

Future minimum lease payments under these cagithlease obligations, including interest as of Ddwer 31, 2010
were as follows:

Year ending December 31,

2011 $28,57.

2012 15,20:

43,77*

Less imputed intere: (4,507)
Present value of future 39,27:

minimum lease paymen
Less current maturities (24,69)
$ 14,571

These leases have annual interest rates rangimg1f886 - 15%.
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CHEMBIO DIAGNOSTICS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

NOTE 9— RELATED PARTIES:
In September 2006, the Company entered into digtab and licensing agreements with Alere, Inc.lé®”). As of
December 31, 2010 Alere owned 8.62% of the Comp&®e Note 15 where Alere is listed as customer 1.
During the quarter ended December 31, 2008, Alet#ied the Company that they had entered into rareat with
Bio-Rad Laboratories, Inc. (“Bio-Rad”) for royaltien Bio-Rad’s patent for the detection of HIV-2ibodies. The
agreement also provided for Alere to pay past t®gl On June 25, 2009, the Company and Alererexht@to a
letter agreement whereby certain obligations aggieg approximately $1,010,000 as of December 31082
(included in accounts payable and accrued expensee Note 5) were agreed to be paid from futuwrermges. The
obligations included the Company’s royalties owewtler its agreements with Alere on lateral flow fises. This
amount was fully paid in 2010.
NOTE 10— INCOME TAXES:
The provision for income taxes for the years erdedember 31, 2010 and 2009, are comprised of tlewiog:
2010 2009
Current
Federa $ 4512 % -
State 702 -
Total current provisio 45,82+ -
Deferred
Federa - -
State - -
Total deferred provisio - -
Total provision $ 4582 % =

At December 31, 2010, the Company has unused rexaiipg loss carry-forwards of approximately $19,000
which expire between 2018 and 2028. Most of thimant may be subject to annual limitations undetage
provisions of the Internal Revenue Code relatetthanges in ownership”. In addition the Compang haesearch
and development credit carryforward of approximat$594,000 for the year ended December 31, 201@hwhi
expires between 2011 and 2029.

As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, the deferrechssets related to the aforementioned net operiisgycarry-
forwards have been fully offset by a valuation alimce, since significant utilization of such amauistnot presently
expected in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and valuation allmea consist of:

2010 2009
Current assets
Inventory $ 198,000 $ 124,00(
Less valuation allowanc (198,000 (124,000
Net current deferred ass $ — $ —
Noncurrent assets
Net operating loss carforwards $ 6,618,000 $ 7,490,001
Research and development cr 594,00( 628,00(
Other 34,00( 176,00(
Gross deferred tax ass: 7,246,00! 8,294,00!
Less valuation allowances (7,246,000 (8,294,000
Net deferred tax asse $ — 9 —

operating loss carryfowards.

The change in the valuation allowances betweerD 201d 2009 are mainly due to the utilization of
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CHEMBIO DIAGNOSTICS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

A reconciliation of the Federal statutory ratehe effective rate applicable to income (loss) beiacome taxes is as
follows:

Year Ending December 3

2010 2009
Federal income ta
(benefit) at statutory
rates 34.(% 34.(%
State income taxes, n
of federal benefi -% -%
Nondeductible expens: 2.0% 17.&%
Change in valuatio
allowance (34.4) % (52.29) %
Other 2% .5%
Income tax (benefit) 1.8% -%

Interest and penalties, if any, related to incoaelibilities are included in income tax expenge. of December 31,
2010, the Company does not have a liability foregngnized tax benefits.

The Company files Federal and New York state inctemeeturns. Tax years for fiscal 2007 througbB2@re open
and potentially subject to examination by the fatland New York state taxing authorities.

NOTE 11— STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY:
(@ Common Stock

During 2010, options to purchase 259,082 sharahefCompany’s common stock were exercised at eseerci
prices ranging from of $.13 to $.22.

During 2009, options to purchase 35,000 shareh®fCompany’s common stock were exercised at arcisger
price of $.13.

(b) Preferred Stock

The Company has 10,000,000 shares of preferred stothorized and none outstanding. These shames ca
become issuable upon an approved resolution bybted of directors and the filing of a Certificabé
Designation with the state of Nevada.

(¢) Warrants

In January 2010, certain warrants to purchase greggted 4,960,370 shares of common stock expétedn
average exercise price of $.474. In August 20&0tain warrants to purchase an aggregated 94,65@ slof
common stock expired, at an average exercise pfie687.

During 2009 certain warrants to purchase an agtpdga,489,120 shares of common stock expired, at an
average exercise price of $.764.

NOTE 12— RIGHTS AGREEMENT:

In March 2010, the Company entered into a RightseAment dated March 8, 2010 (the "Rights Agreement"
between the Company and Action Stock Transfer C@p.Rights Agent. Pursuant to the Rights Agreéntbe
Company declared a dividend distribution of ondgred share purchase right (a "Right") for eactstaunding share
of Common Stock, $0.01 par value (the "Common Sjoak the Company. The Board of Directors set plagment
date for the distribution of the Rights as March 2810, and the Rights were distributed to the Comjsa
shareholders of record on that date. The deseoniihd terms of the Rights are set forth in thehRig\greement.
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NOTE 13—

CHEMBIO DIAGNOSTICS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

Rights Initially Not Exercisable. The Rights are not exercisable until a DistribantiDate. Until a Right is
exercised, the holder thereof, as such, will hagerights as a shareholder of the Company, includimighout
limitation, the right to vote or to receive dividisn

Separation and Distribution of Rights. The Rights will be evidenced by the certificates shares of Common
Stock registered in the names of the holders tfieamal not by separate rights certificates untl #arlier to occur of
(i) the close of business on the tenth businessfolégwing a public announcement that an Acquirifgrson (as
defined in the Rights Agreement) acquired a Contbi@&nership (as defined in the Rights Agreement) 5% or
more of the outstanding shares of the Common Sthek"Shares Acquisition Date") or (ii) the latér(8) the close
of business on the tenth business day (or suchdate as may be determined by action of the Bo&idirectors
prior to such time as any person or group of affld or associated persons becomes an Acquirirsp®eafter the
date that a tender or exchange offer or intentmrdmmence a tender or exchange offer by any pessdinst
published, announced, sent or given within the rimgpaf Rule 14d-4(A) under the Securities ExchaAgeof 1934,
as amended, the consummation of which would réswahy person having Combined Ownership of 15% orenof
the outstanding shares of the Common Stock, orif{Buch a tender or exchange offer has been puddish
announced, sent or given before the date of thetRi§greement, then the close of business on tith tmisiness day
after the date the Rights Agreement was entered(ortsuch later date as may be determined byracfithe Board
of Directors prior to such time as any person bezpan Acquiring Person); (the earlier of such degésrred to in
(i) and (ii), which date may include any such dtat is after the date of the Rights Agreement godr to the
issuance of the Rights, being called the "DistitiuDate™).

EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION PLAN:

The Company has a 1999 Stock Option Plan (“SORgirally covering 1,500,000 shares of Common Staékder

the terms of the SOP, the Compensation CommittekeoCompany’s board is authorized to grant ineentiptions

to key employees and to grant non-qualified optitm&ey employees and key individuals. The optibesome

exercisable at such times and under such condiisrdetermined by the Compensation Committee. SIbE was
amended at the Company’s 2005 stockholders’ meefiingg number of options under the SOP was incte&se
cover 3,000,000 shares of common stock. It wasaisended to allow independent directors to bebddidor grants

under the portion of the SOP concerning non-qualifiptions.

Effective June 3, 2008, the Company'’s stockholdetsd to approve the 2008 Stock Incentive PlanR"BI Under
the terms of the SIP, the Compensation Committeth@fCompany’s board shall have the discretionetecs the
persons to whom Awards are to be granted. Awardsbeaincentive stock options, restricted stock andgstricted
stock units. The Awards become vested at such tandsunder such conditions as determined by thep@asation
Committee.

The Company's results for the years ended DeceBihe2010 and 2009 include share-based compensstjzense
totaling $170,000 and $198,000, respectively. Sammiounts have been included in the Consolidateti@tnts of
Operations within cost of goods sold ($20,000 aR8,800, respectively), research and developmer&,($8 and
$75,000, respectively) and selling, general and iadinative expenses ($64,000 and $98,000, resmdg)i No
income tax benefit has been recognized in the imcetatement for share-based compensation arrangsiches to
the history of operating losses.

Stock option compensation expense in the yearsdebdeember 31, 2010 and 2009 represents the estnfiait
value of options outstanding which is being amedion a straight-line basis over the requisiteinggteriod of the
entire award.

The weighted average estimated fair value of stqations granted in the years ended December 310 26d 2009
was $.22 and $.13 per share, respectively. Thevidile of options at the date of grant was esgwhaising the
Black-Scholes option pricing model. The expectethtidy is based upon historical volatility of ogtock and other
contributing factors. The expected term is deteedinsing the simplified method as permitted by SKB, as the
Company has no history of employee exercise obaptto date.
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CHEMBIO DIAGNOSTICS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

The assumptions made in calculating the fair vabfesptions are as follows:

For the years endec
December 31, 2009

December 31, 201(

Expected term (in 4 lto4
years)

Expected volatility 116.82% 123.81%
Expected dividend yield n/a n/a
Risk-free interest rate 1.43% .54-1.95%

The Company granted 300,000 new options under tRepfan during the year ended December 31, 201énat
exercise price of $.27 per share.

On May 7, 2009, the Compensation Committee of tben@any reduced, to $0.13 per share, the exercise pf
each outstanding employee option that was issuddruthe 1999 Equity Incentive Plan (the “1999 P)dot which
the exercise price was greater than $0.44 per sifaifee Company’s common stock. There was no othenge
made to the terms of the stock options other tharreduction in the exercise price. A total of 350 options were
affected and the fair value difference of the apgidbefore and after the reduction was $31,660 aaslexpensed in
the three months ended June 30, 2009.

In addition, on May 7, 2009 in accordance with tirens of the Company’s 2008 Stock Incentive Plaa,Gompany
granted certain employees of the Company, optionmutchase an aggregate of 2,925,000 shares @dhgany’s
common stock. The exercise price for these optisresjual to $0.13 per share. The options becomeisable in
thirds on the first, second and third anniversadéshe date of the grant. Each option granted @ibpire and
terminate, if not exercised sooner, upon the eatbeoccur of (a) 30 days after termination of #mployee’s
employment with the Company or (b) the fifth anmgagy of the date of grant. The fair value of theptions is
being amortized over the vesting life of the opsion

On May 7, 2009, the Board of Directors of the Compaevised the compensation of non-employee directo
increase the number of options to purchase the @ogip common stock issued to directors once eviggy fears
from 180,000 to 375,000. To accommodate the tiansion June 3, 2009 at the annual meeting, nopl@rae
directors that were re-elected were issued thed-fiear allotment of options and those options ipresly granted but
not exercisable as of June 3, 2009 were cancelléd. number issued was 750,000 and the number ltztheeas
216,000. The 216,000 options were treated aspaice for accounting purposes. The fair valughafse options
granted is being amortized over the vesting liféhef options.

The following table provides stock options activity the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009:
Weighted  Weighted
Average Average

Stock Options Number of Shard&ercise Pric Remaining /99"€gate Intrinsi

per Share Contractual Value
Term

Outstanding at January 1, 20 2,416,65  $0.36 3.23 years $ 5
| mpact of r-price (for accounting purposes treated as a caiweiland r-issue):

effect as if cancelle (1,252,75(  $0.48

effect as if r-issiued 1,252,7¢  $0.13

Grantec 3,459,0C  $0.13

Exercisec (35,00  $0.13

Forfeited/expired /cancelled (253,75( $0.17

Outstanding at December 31, 200 5,586,90 $0.15 3.59years $ 756,9¢
Grantec 300,0C  $0.27

Exercisec (259,08:  $0.15

Forfeited/expired/cancelle (97,25( $0.26

Outstanding at December 31, 201 5,530,56  $0.16 2.82 years $ 1,497,0€
Exercisable at December 31, 201 2,963,89 $0.17 230 years $ 767,8¢
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CHEMBIO DIAGNOSTICS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

The following table summarizes information abowc&toptions outstanding at December 31, 2010:

Stock Options

Stock Options Outstanding Exercisable B

Average

Remaining Weighted Weighted
Range of Contract Average Aggregate Average Aggregate
Exercise Life Exercise Intrinsic Exercise Intrinsic
Prices Shares (Year) Price Value  Shares Price Value
$0.13- 0.1 4,636,06: 3.8¢$ 0.13($1,367,6412,269,39: $ 0.13( $ 669,47:
$0.14- 0.22 404,50( 3.13 0.22( 46,500 404,50( 0.22( 82,92:
$0.23- 0.45  300,00( 5.1¢ 0.27(¢ 82,92: 100,00( 0.27(¢ 15,50(
$0.46 -0.8¢ 190,00( 2.1F 0.501 - 190,00( 0.501 -
Total 5,530,56: 3.82 % 0.157%$1,497,06:2,963,89:$ 0.171 $ 767,89

As of December 31, 2010, there was $102,000 ofinetcognized compensation cost related to stodkrpthat are
not vested, which is expected to be recognized aveeighted average period of approximately .88sed@he total
fair value of shares vested during the years eridedember 31, 2010 and 2009, was $124,000 and $%0,00
respectively.

NOTE 14—  GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION:
FASB Guidance establishes standards for the wal ibainess enterprises report information aboutraije
segments in financial statements and requiresthitste enterprises report selected informationlsib @stablishes
standards for related disclosures about producsandces, geographic areas, and major customers.
The Company produces only one group of similar potslknown collectively as “rapid medical tests’amhgement

believes that it operates in a single business sagMiet sales by geographic area are as follows:

For the years endec
December December 31

31, 2010 2009
Africa $ 6,129,116 $ 3,351,11!
Asia 120,21 165,29:
Europe 107,06( 111,75¢
Middle East 135,00 185,70(
North America 5,977,10: 6,129,78!
South America 1,047,81. 2,428,84.

$ 13,516,335 $ 12,372,49

Sales to Africa in 2010 were primarily to Ethiogibapproximately $3.69 million and Nigeria of appirately $.87
million. Sales in 2010 to North America were prithafrom sales in the U.S of approximately $5.28lion and
sales in 2010 to South America were primarily freahes in Brazil of approximately $.82 million.

During 2009, the Nigerian Ministry of Health rewedtback to a parallel testing algorithm (whereinhepatient is

tested with two rapid tests from different manufisets) and re-instated our designation in Nigeseoae of the
screening tests. Consequently, our sales to Nigecireased by $209,000 in 2010 as compared to.2009
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NOTE 15—

CHEMBIO DIAGNOSTICS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES:

Employment Contracts:

The Company has contracts with two key employd8éee contracts call for salaries presently aggrega$510,000
per year. One contract expires in May 2012 and aorgract expires in March 2013. The following leals a
schedule of future minimum salary commitments:

2011 $ 518,30

2012 373,75(
2013 44,20(
$ 963,25I

Pension Plan:

The Company has a 401(k) plan established fornitpleyees. The Company elected to match 20% ofitsie5%
(or 1% of salary) that an employee contributeshiirt401(k) plan. Expenses related to this matgltiontribution
aggregated none and $1,534 for the years endedrbece1, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

As of January 19, 2009, the Company suspended éitehing contribution.

Obligations Under Operating Leases:

The Company leases approximately 23,400 squareofdatiustrial space used for office, R&D and mauidiring
facilities, currently with a monthly rent of $14%8The current lease expires on April 30, 2014e &itered into a
second lease effective February 1, 2010, the mé@hderms of this lease are the same as the opeedninto in 2009
and are as follows: (a) a lease term ending AilZD14; (b) an initial rent of $11,350 per monthsp$3,333 for the
second lease (March and April of 2010 are freethedmonth of April in 2011, 2012 and 2013 is alszej ; (c) the
monthly rent for year two of the lease (does nqtiapo second lease) will increase by the lowe(ipthe change in
the consumer price index, or (i) five percent; édpithe monthly rent for years three through fofehe lease (years
two through four of the second lease) will increaseh year by the lower of (i) the change in thesomer price
index, or (ii)two and one half percent. The fellog is a schedule of future minimum rental comnaitris
(assuming no increases):

Year ending December 31,

2011 $ 179,3:
2012 179,3:
2013 179,32
2014 59,7

$ 597,7¢

Rent expense was $174,200 and $145,300 for the gealed December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively.
Economic Dependency:

The following table delineates sales the Company thacustomers in excess of 10% of total salegterperiods
indicated:

Accounts
For the years endec Receivable
December 31, 201 December 31, 200! As of

December

Sales % of Sales Sales % of Sales 31, 2010
Customer 5,281,11. 39 5,240,99! 42 724,98:
Customer 3,689,86! 27 1,292,64i 10 1,424,56:
Customer ¢ kd & 2,293,77! 19 741,08¢
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CHEMBIO DIAGNOSTICS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

In the table above the asterisk (*) indicates Haé¢s to the customer did not exceed 10% for thegedicated.

The following table delineates purchases the Comead with vendors in excess of 10% of total pusesafor the
periods indicated:

Accounts
For the years endec Payable
December 31, 201! December 31, 200! As of
December
Purchases % of Purc. Purchases % of Purc. 31, 2010
Vendor 1 596,55¢ 18 575,36 20 45,03t

The Company currently buys materials which are lpased under intellectual property rights agreemants are
important components in its products. Managemefieves that other suppliers could provide simiteterials on
comparable terms. A change in suppliers, howearld cause a delay in manufacturing and a poskibeof sales,
which would affect operating results adversely.

COLLABORATIVE RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT ARRANGEMENTS

In 2010 and 2009, the Company earned $2.8 milliod &1.3 million, respectively from research revenusnd
milestones. The Company is now involved in addgio feasibility and development contracts relatedits DPP®
technology. The total expended on R&D in 2010 20609, not including regulatory and QTDP, was appnakely $2.9
million and $2.4 million, respectively. DuringetHourth quarter of 2010 the Company was awarded7$illion from the
Qualified Therapeutic Discovery Project grant, vwhieduced 2010 R&D expenses to $1.4 million.

a. Bio-Rad:

On April 16, 2008, the Company entered into a dgwelent agreement (“Bio-Rad Agreement”) with Bio-Rad
Laboratories, N.A. (“Bio-Rad”). The Bio-Rad Agreent is for the development of a new multiplex pretdu
(“product”) that would be developed on DPP® and ahhivould be marketed exclusively by Bio-Rad under a
exclusive limited DPP® license from Chembio to Blad limited to the field of application of this jphact. The
agreement with Bio-Rad contemplated that the Compaould enter into a license agreement subjecthi t
satisfaction of certain initial development milests.

In accoradnace with guidance, management has aettline Bio-Rad events recorded this year meedéfiaition
of milestone events. The Company earned $61520@0$0 for the years ended December 31, 2010 66,2
respectively.

There are additional royalties and purchase comemtmdue to the Company to be executed in theduwtdich will
result in a larger revenue stream. Under the Bid-Rgreement, the Company granted to Bio-Rad dtyofrae
license when the Company manufactures the prodact,when Bio-Rad manufactures the product a seeecept
royalty payment on net sales in those countriesatiner jurisdictions where Chembio has filed tHevant patent.
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b. Oswaldo Cruz Foundation/Fiocruz

During 2008, the Company signed four Agreements wie Bio-Manguinhos unit of the Oswaldo Cruz Faatiah

of Brazil (“FIOCRUZ") for the supply, license andahsfer of certain products and related technotofiiem the
Company to FIOCRUZ. The agreements are for thipviahg rapid test products: i) DPP® HIV 1/2 Scredi,

DPP® HIV 1/2 Confirmatory, iii) DPP® Leptospirosasid iv) DPP® Leishmaniasis. These Agreements peofadda

staged technology transfer collaboration pursuamthiich FIOCRUZ will ultimately be able to fully mafacture the
applicable product for supply in Brazil providedteén minimum purchases of products and relatedpmorants have
occurred.

In accordance with guidance, management has coettltiet FIOCRUZ events recorded this year meet dfiaition
of milestone events. The Company earned $625,000h® year ended December 31, 2010. Future milesto
revenues expected from the agreements are $405,000.

There are additional royalties and purchase comemtmdue to the Company to be executed in theduwtdich will
result in a larger revenue stream.

c. Infectious Disease Research Institute (IDRI) Agreemt :

In April 2009, Chembio entered into a developmegreament for up to approximately $400,000 in cotineawith
the development and initial supply of a low-costpid point-of-care ("POC") test for infectious dises. The
agreement contemplates a period of approximatetyy®ars in which the development activity is todoenpleted.
Chembio entered this agreement with IDRI.

As of December 31, 2010, the Company received $D88jn research and development payments from this
agreement and $65,000 is reflected in deferredmexe

d. National Institutes of Health (NIH) Grant:

In June 2009, the Company received a $3 millionegkyear grant from the United States Nationalitutsts of
Health to complete development of a test for Lepitosis. Grants are invoiced after expenses anartiad.

e. Battelle/CDC DPI® Influenza Immunity Tes

In December 2009, Chembio entered into a developegmreement for up to approximately $900,000 inneation
with the development and initial supply of a mukix rapid point-of-care ("POC") influenza immunitgst. The
agreement contemplates a period of approximately nmionths in which the development activity is éocompleted.
Chembio entered this agreement with Battelle Meatdnistitute, which has a master contract with Wmited States
Centers for Disease Control and Prevention ("CD@&)enter into, implement and provide technical reight of
agreements relating to pandemic preparedness @if loéICDC.

F-20
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Based on the following events, in accordance witidgnce, management has concluded the Battellestmiles
recorded this quarter meet the definition of mest events.

As of December 31, 2010, the Company recognize®$80 in milestone revenues from this agreement.

Governmental Regulation:

All of the Company’s existing and proposed diagimoptoducts are regulated by the United States Fawti Drug
Administration (FDA), United States Department ajrigulture, certain state and local agencies, antdmparable
regulatory bodies in other countries. Most aspettslevelopment, production, and marketing, inahgdproduct
testing, authorizations to market, labeling, prapmtmanufacturing, and record keeping are sultifectview. After
marketing approval has been granted, Chembio narginue to comply with governmental regulationsillire to
comply with these regulations can result in sigmifit penalties.
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Exhibit 21

List of Subsidiaries

Chembio Diagnostic Systems, Inc. (Delaware)




Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We hereby consent to the incorporationdfgrence in Registration Statement No. 333-694@80Rzyistration Statement No. 333-141555
on Form S-8 of our report dated March 3, 2011 imdgtio the consolidated balance sheets of Chemlzgridstics Inc. and Subsidiary as of
December 31, 2010 and 2009 and the related coasetictatements of operations, stockholders ' gauitl cash flows for each of the two
years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009 appearihi iAnnual Report on Form -K of Chembio Diagnostics, Inc. for the year ended
December 31, 2010.

ParenteBeard LLC

/s/ ParenteBeard LLC

New York, New York
March 3, 2011




EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION

I, Lawrence A. Siebert, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Form 10-K of Chembio Diastics, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notain any untrue statement of a material fact oit torstate a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in lightafircumstances under which such statementsmwade, not misleading with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemertd other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resoftsperations and cash flows of the registrantfaaral for, the periods presented in this report;

4.  The registrant’s other certifying officer(s)cal are responsible for establishing and maintgimisclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a)Hnd 15d-15(e)) and internal control over firnaheporting (as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrand have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedunecaused such disclosure controls and procedorde designed under
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtubsidiaries, is made known to us by ot
within those entities, particularly during the metin which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financ&garting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed un
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargardang the reliability of financial reporting arlde preparation of financial statements
external purposes in accordance with generallymgedeaccounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsadisclosure controls and procedures and presémtiis report our conclusions ab
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andgualures, as of the end of the period coveredibyéport based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the segnt’s internal control over financial reportittgat occurred during the registramt
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrariturth fiscal quarter in the case of an annuabr® that has materially affected, or is reasopéikely
to materially affect, the registrant’s internal tmhover financial reporting; and

5.  The registrant’s other certifying officer(s)cal have disclosed, based on our most recent atiaituof internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditorglahe audit committee of the registrant’s boardicéctors (or persons performing the
equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakgses in the design or operation of internal cbwotrer financial reporting which &
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regidfsaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a sigmifrole in the registrar

internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 3, 2011 /s/ Lawrence Aebi@irt
Lawrence A. Siebert, Chief Executive Officer




EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION

I, Richard J. Larkin, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this Form 10-K of Chembio Diastics, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does niotaio any untrue statement of a material fact oit torstate a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmisieading with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeartd other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdth@ periods presented in this report;

4.  The registrang’ other certifying officer(s) and | are responsiioleestablishing and maintaining disclosure cdstemd procedures (
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
() and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedunecaused such disclosure controls and procedorde designed under
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtubsidiaries, is made known to us by ot
within those entities, particularly during the metin which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financ&garting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed un
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargardang the reliability of financial reporting arlde preparation of financial statements
external purposes in accordance with generallymgedeaccounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsadisclosure controls and procedures and presémtiis report our conclusions ab
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andgualures, as of the end of the period coveredibyéport based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the ggnt’s internal control over financial reportittgat occurred during the registrant’
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrariturth fiscal quarter in the case of an annuabr® that has materially affected, or is reasopéikely
to materially affect, the registrant’s internal tmhover financial reporting; and

5. The registrans other certifying officer(s) and | have disclosbdsed on our most recent evaluation of internatrobover financie
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitte@mmmittee of the registrastboard of directors (or persons performing theveden:
functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakgses in the design or operation of internal cbwotrer financial reporting which &
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regidfsaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a sigmifrole in the registrar

internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 3, 2011 [ Rechard J. Larkin
Richard J. Larkin, Chief Financial Officer




EXHIBIT 32

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10tke(“Report”) of Chembio Diagnostics, Inc. (the ‘@pany”)for the year ended Decem
31, 2010, each of the undersigned Lawrence A. Biethe Chief Executive Officer of the Company, @idhard J. Larkin, the Chief Financ
Officer of the Company, hereby certifies pursuanl8 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuantdtoBe906 of the Sarban&xley Act o
2002, that, to the best of the undersigneds’ kndgdeand belief:

(1) This Form 10-K for the year ended December2®1,0 fully complies with the requirements of secti8(a) or 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in this Form 10-K fbe year ended December 31, 2010 fairly presantd| material respects, the
financial condition and results of operations oe@liio Diagnostics, Inc. for the periods presentedetin.

Dated: March 3, 2011 Liawvrence A. Siebert
Lawrence A. Siebert
Chief Executive Officer

Dated: March 3, 2011 Rezhard J. Larkin
Richard J. Larkin
Chief Financial Officer




